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CHANDIGARH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED - PROFILE

Chandigarh International Airport is a civil airport which serves the Union Territory Chandigarh and other
Indian states of Punjab, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh etc. The airport runway is located in the Union Territory
of Chandigarh while the International Terminal is located on the southern side of the runway in the village
Jhurheri, Mohali, Punjab.

Providing insight about the company, Chandigarh International Airport Limited (CHIAL) is a joint venture
company with Airports Authority of India having 51% Equity Stake, Punjab Government (Greater Mohali
Area Development Authority-GMADA) and Haryana Government (Haryana Urban Development Authority-
HUDA) each having 24.5% Equity Stake to operate, develop and maintain the Chandigarh International
Airport (a new state of art International Airport at Mohali, Punjab). The New Civil Air Terminal has been
established with distinct green building features on aland area of 300 Acres. The new International Airport
is operational from October 19,2015.

Being the fastest growing airports in India, the Chandigarh International Airport has shown exponential
growth in terms of its passenger base ranging from 0.15 m to 2.09 m over the spanof 12 yearsand remainsa
key engine for economic growth of the region.

The modern Integrated Terminal Building is made of glass and steel structure and is equipped with the
modern state-of-the-art equipment and passenger facilities. Terminal Building is fully air conditioned with
Common Use Terminal Equipment (CUTE), Flight Information Display System (FIDS) and In-line Baggage
handling system etc. for efficiency of operations.

To strengthen
Chandigarh
International Airport
as the leading
aviation hub and key

Driving Regions
Economic Prosperity

e .7 | through aviation and 4 Mn annual
Seddc il i Bomiadeca M commercial enplaned and
growih of thé vegion development deplaned passengers |

by 2022

CHIAL's strategy, driven by its mission and vision, focuses on honoring and respecting its core values while
delivering major overreaching goal of increasing passenger numbers. Currently, the airport's total
passenger count includes both business and leisure travelers. The Company's strategic medium term goal
has been adjusted upwards of 4 million passengers enplaned and deplaned by 2022 which includes both

..q.....---.-...-......-...ﬂw-.

domesticand international passengers.
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At Chandigarh International Airport (CHIAL), Our Excellent service standards are a result of an inspired,
motivated, passionate and dedicated Team Work that treats its 'Guest as Equivalent to God' (ATHITHI
DEVOY BHAVA). Itis an epitome of modernization with its contemporary aesthetics together with the world-
class provisions as the leading aviation hub in north of India and considered as gateway to the tourist
destinations. The Airport building has been layered with awe-inspiring interiors. The blend of sophisticated

artifacts and lush green landscaping give a splendid touch to the airport premises.

UPCOMING HIGHLIGHTS AT CHANDIGARH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

o Upgrading from CAT - I ILS to CAT -
III B ILS resulting in avoidance,
cancellation & diversion of flights
during fog season.

« Construction of Southern taxi track
to improve runway occupancy time.

« Installation of Inline X-Ray Baggage
System for faster and better security
to passengers.

« Construction of Integrated Cargo
Hub (Perishable & Non-Perishable).

J
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CHIAL - AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

Certified with a Four Star Rating Under GRIHA.

CIDC (Construction Industry Development Council)

Award for Best Construction.

SKOCH Award for Energy Conversation, Environment
Conservation, Skill Development, Employment
Generation, Financial Growth of Region and Completion

without Time and Cost Over Run.

[BC Award for Excellence in Built Environment 2014-15
for “New Integrated Terminal Building of Chandigarh

International Airport”,

Network 18 and Honeywell Smart building Awards,
2016 &2017.

Award for Completion of Project without Time and Cost
Over Run by AAIL

Chandigarh International Airport received award for
rank number one in Customer Satisfaction Index Survey
2016 in the segment of similar category of Airports

conducted by Airports Council International.

Chandigarh International Airport Limited has ranked
1st position for “Clean & Safe Airport” Award out of 22
AAI Airports conducted by Quality Council Inspection

team.

Chandigarh International Airport Limited won ASQ
2018 award for Best Airport by size and Region and Best
Environment & Ambience by Size (2-5 Million
Passengers) in ASIA PACIFIC.

Chandigarh International Airport Limited has also won
Firstin INDIA Swachhta Award presented by AAl for the
year 2018-19.

SadneenANEENONERRENNNRERNENNNGSN
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CHIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD MEMBERS
AS ON
31ST MARCH, 2019

e |

)

Sh. Anuj Aggarwal, Sh. Narasimha Murthy Indrakanti, Sh. Rakesh Kalra, Sh. Ravichandran Gurusamy,
Member (HR), Member (Operations), RED (NR), ED (JVC),
AAIl & Chairman, AAl & Nominee Director, AAIl & Nominee Director, AAI & Nominee Director,
CHIAL CHIAL CHIAL CHIAL

Director
MoCA & Nominee Director, CHIAL

ol REPRSENTATIVES OF PUNJAB GOVT. s REPRSENTATIVES OF HARYANA GOVT. g

=== ==

Sh. Tejveer Singh, IAS, Smt. Gurneet Tej, IAS, Sh. Devender Singh, IAS, Dr. J. Ganesan, IAS

Principal Secretary to CM, CA, GMADA, Principal Secretary to Govt. Haryana, CA, HUDA
Punjab & Nominee Director, & Nominee Director, Civil Aviation Department & & Nominee Director,
CHIAL CHIAL e Nominee Director, CHIAL GHIAL
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CHIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PRESENT BOARD MEMBERS
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REPRSENTATIVES OF AIRPORTS AUTHORITY OF INDIA

B
B
. . i) oy
- Sh. Narasimha Murthy Indrakanti, Sh. Vineet Gulati, Sh. M.N.N. Rao, Sh. Rakesh Kalra,
Member (Operations), Member (ANS), RED (NR), ED (Engg.),
- AAI & Chairman, AAl & Nominee Director, AAI & Nominee Director, AAl & Nominee Director,
CHIAL CHIAL CHIAL CHIAL

m
0 i

1
M i

1
. L
n
s

Sh. Venkairamana R. Hegde
| i} Director,
MoCA & Nominee Director, CHIAL

|

Bl REPRSENTATIVES OF PUNJAB GOVT. &=

r-—
1

Sh. Tejveer Singh, IAS, Smt. Kavita Singh, IAS, Sh. Devender Singh, IAS,
Principal Secretary to CM, CA, GMADA Principal Secretary to Govt. Haryana,
Punjab & Nominee Director, & Nominee Director Civil Aviation Department &
CHIAL CHIAL 6 Nominee Director, CHIAL

sl REPRSENTATIVES OF HARYANA GOVT.

Dr. D. Suresh, IAS,
CA, HUDA
& Nominee Director,
CHIAL

FARERER.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

i

PRESENT KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Sh. Suneel Dutt, Sh. Rakesh Dembla,
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Avneet Kaur
Company Secretary

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2019

Sh. Suneel Dutt, Sh. Rakesh Dembla,
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
REFERENCE INFORMATION

=

Ms. Avneet Kaur
Company Secretary

Registered Office : Room No. 1, Project Office Building, Airport Authority of India,

Civil Airport, Chandigarh-160003
Corporate Office : New Civil Air Terminal, Jhurheri, Mohali (Punjab)160004

Telephone No. : 0172-2242016, Fax No.: 0172-2242003

E-mail Id : secretary.chial@rediffmail.com

CIN : U63013CH2010G0I03199

Bankers: Internal Auditors:

Yes Bank, Mohali M/s. Anil Puneet & Associates, Panchkula
State Bank of India, Chandigarh

Statutory Auditors: Cost Auditors:

M/s. Rajiv Goel & Associates, Chandigarh E M/s. Narasimha Murthy & Co., Hyderabad
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

PAX PER YEAR
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Over the years, Chandigarh has become a prominent destination for people traveling to Punjab, Haryana
and Himachal Pradesh. Currently there are approx. 31 operational flights at the Airport with some of the
prominent flight operators being Air India, Air Asia, Tata SIA Airlines, Go Air, Indigo etc. The passenger flow
attheairporthas witnessed a CAGR of approx. 28% from nearly 0.64 millions in 2010-11 to 1.83 millions in
2016-17 and is expected to grow ata CAGR of nearly 18% till 2021. However, Airport remain closed for 20
days (12 May 2018 to 31 May 2018) and restriction on operational watch hours at the Airport (i.e. for 13
hours till 2019 owing to Runway carpeting work being carried out by Indian Air Force) which would affect
the passenger flowin 2019 resulting in expected reduction of 10% - 15% of total future passenger flow.

Some of the key international destinations with regular flights include Dubai and Sharjah. Air India was the
first flight operator to take off an international flight from Chandigarh Airport to Sharjah in September
2016. Some of the existing developments at the airport include Indian Air-force Base, terminal building,
solar panels, airport authority office, surface parking, service yards etc. By the end of 2019-20, with the
proposed expansion plans of the airport, tremendous growth has been envisaged and a highly positive

Ildlllllllll.lllllllllllllllll-‘

outlook for the region is anticipated.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars 2018-19 | 2017-18
Revenue from operations 10717.94 | 9235.12
Other income 742.20 398.09

Total Income 11460.14 | 9633.21
Expenses 5457.54 4282.39
Profit /(Loss) before Deprecation 6002.60 5350.82
Less: Deprecation 3383.35 3264.42
Profit/(Loss) after Deprecation but before Tax 2619.25 2086.40
Less: Provision for Tax 746.52 679.92

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 1872.73 1406.48

= Aeronaufical
Airport Services

W Non - Aeronautical
Airport Services

m Cargo

= Employee Benefit
Expenses

® Administrative &
other Expenses

m Security Expenses

® Other Expanses

Composition of Revenue

Composition of Expenditure
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CHAIRMAN ADDRESS

DEARSHAREHOLDERS,

I'am delighted to welcome you all to the 9th Annual General Meeting of CHIAL. The Annual Report for
financial year ending March 31, 2019 along with the Directors’ Report, Audited Annual Accounts and
Auditor’sreportofyour Company are with youand with your permission, | take them as read.

We are living an era of disruptive change, with technology and digitization rewriting every rule of the book.
As the winds of change impact every aspect of our lives - social, economic, political and environmental, it
cannot be business as usual. As the old order changes and gives way to the new, we have no choice but to
reinventourselves and evolve in this new landscape.

Chandigarh International Airport is a civil airport which serves the Union Territory Chandigarh and other
states of Punjab, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh etc. The airport runway is located in the Union Territory of
Chandigarh while the International Terminal is located on the southern side of the runway in the village
Jhurheri, Mohali, Punjab. The New Civil Air Terminal has been established with distinct green building
features onaland area of 300 Acres. The new International Airport is operational from October 19, 2015.

The Airport Echo building has been layered with awe-inspiring interiors. The blend of sophisticated
artifacts and lush green landscaping provide it with a splendid touch. Horticulture and landscape features
developed on around 12 acres of land, creates pleasant environment at Airport. In the view to make the
airport environmental friendly, a 3 MWp solar power plant has been installed which enables Airport to
function completely on solar power during the day time.

At Chandigarh International Airport (CHIAL), our Excellent service standards are a result of an inspired,
motivated, passionate and dedicated Team Work that treats its ‘Guest as Equivalent to God’ (ATHITHI
DEVOY BHAVA). It is an epitome of modernization with its contemporary aesthetics together with the
world-class provisions as the leading aviation hub in north of India and considered as gateway to the tourist
destinations.

Being the fastest growing airports in India, Chandigarh International Airport has shown exponential
growthin terms ofits passenger base ranging from 0.15 m to 2.09 m over the span of 10 years and remains a
key engine for economic growth of the region.

['take this opportunity to share my views on the present performance of the Company:

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, Company has achieved commendable growth in all key performance
parameters despite with so many limitations. The total revenue for the year ended 31.03.2019 is Rs. 114.60
Crores which recorded an impressive growth of 18.97% over the previous financial year. The Company has
reported a profit after tax of Rs. 18.72 Crores for the current year as compared to the profit after tax of Rs.
14.06 Croresreported during the last financial year.

llilllllllll.llllllllllllllllll
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ACHIEVEMENTS

One of the key achievements based on the performance in the past year was that our Airport has received
the award for Best Airport by size and region (in the category of 2-5 million passengers per year) AND Best
Environment & Ambience by size (in the category of 2-5 million Passengers), Asia-Pacific category. Our
Airport has also won first prize in India Swachhta Award presented by AAL Our Airportachieved a score of
4.95 in a five point scale index in the ACI Airport Service Quality (ASQ) conducted by an Independent
Agency fortheyear 2018-19.

DEVELOPMENT PLANS

The Terminal Building has a total capacity of 4.5 million passengers per annum. Further, to increase the
capacity of building to cater passenger movement for further 5-6 years, the possibility of addition of 4 nos.
of PBBs towards west side of the building adjoining the apron which will facilitate to add around additional
400 no. of passenger seats, extension of corridor of departure and arrival of New Terminal Building is in
progress. Further; following future expansion plans are also in progress:

. Construction of Integrated Cargo Hub (Perishable & Non-Perishable).

. Upgrading from CAT - 1 ILS to CAT - II11LS.

. Construction of Southern taxi track to improve runway occupancy time.
. Installation of Inline X-Ray Baggage for more security to passengers.

. Procurement of Automatic Tray Retrieval (ATR) system.

. Installation of Body Scanners.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

[ am pleased to inform you that your Company has complied with the Corporate Governance norms as
stipulated by the Central Government through the guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises
and your Company is taking all efforts to adopt the best Corporate Governance practices. Your Company’s
Directors report contains a separate section on Corporate Governance. Your Company is committed to
maintain the highest level of transparency, accountability and equity in operations. Your company always
strives to follow the path of good Governance throughabroad framework of various processes.

CONCLUSION

Before concluding, I wish to place on record our deep sense of appreciation of the sincere efforts putin by
our employees at all levels which enabled your Company to record improved performance during the year.
I would also like to thank my colleagues on the Board, who spared considerable time and participated
actively in the deliberations of the Board with their in depth knowledge and guidance on various issues
which greatly contributed in taking appropriate decisions. | wish to convey my sincere thanks to Airports
Authority of India, Ministry of Civil Aviation, Govt. of Punjab, Govt. of Haryana, Air Force, Ministry of
Defense, Government of Union territory, Chandigarh and Banks for their continued support and

cooperation.
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 9th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Chandigarh
International Airport Limited will be held on Monday, 30th day of September, 2019 at 11.00 A.M. at
Registered Office of the Company to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31st March
2019, Statement of Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended
onthatdate together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2 To take note of the appointment of M/s Rajiv Goel & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
Chandigarh as Statutory Auditors of the Company and to ratify their appointment,
remuneration and to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the appointment of M/s. Rajiv Goel & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
Chandigarh (Firm Registration No. 011106N) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
financial year 2019-20 in terms of the letter issued by Comptroller & Auditor General of India
(C&AG) vide letter no. CA. V/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT,CIAL(0) /426 dated 06.08.2019 be
and is hereby noted and the remuneration payable to them of Rs. 100,000/- plus GST (as
applicable) perannum be and is hereby ratified.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Cost Audit) Rules, 2014, M/s Narasimha Murthy & Company, Cost Accountants,
Hyderabad be and are hereby appointed as cost auditors of the Company to audit the cost
records of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2020, at a remuneration of Rs.
100,000/- plus GST per annum and reimbursement of travellingand incidental expenses.

TSFd FATT: F ST 1, GOESET ST 99w, B veard, =€hE- 160003
Registered Office: Room No. 1, Project Office Building, Civil Airport, Chandigarh- 160003
FIaTee Fater: 75 fafae v = filfqe, ), At (99ma) 140306
Corporate Office: New Civil Air Terminal, Jhurheri, Mohali (Punjab) 140306
Tel No. : 0172-2242016, Fax No. 0172-2242003, email: secretary.chial @rediffmail.com, website: chial.org
CIN U63013CH2010G0I031999
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Rakesh Dembla, CFO of the Company be and is hereby authorized to
effect such appointment and to do all such acts, deeds and things which are necessary in relation to the

By Order of the Board
For Chandigarh International Airport Limited

Place: Delhi SD/-
Date: 28.09.2019 Company Secretary

MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE MAY APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF THEMSELVES AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF
THE COMPANY. PROXIES TO BE VALID MUST BE RECEIVED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF
THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY EIGHT (48) HOURS BEFORE THE APPOINTED TIME OF
THE MEETING.

MEMBERS/PROXIES SHOULD BRING THE ATTENDANCE SLIP SENT HEREWITH DULY FILED
IN FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING. MEMBERS INTENDING TO SEND THEIR AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVES TO ATTEND THE MEETING ARE REQUESTED TO SEND TO THE COMPANY,
AUTHORIZATION LETTER AUTHORIZING THE REPRESENTATIVE TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON
THEIR BEHALF AT THE MEETING.

AN EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO. 3ISFURNISHED HEREIN.

iSfiF FETAE: W FET 1, TRENET FEEE AE, @fEw vaeE, $€iE-160003
Registered Office: Room No. 1, Project Office Building, Civil Airport, Chandigarh- 160003
FiTee Frataa: 75 AfEe vae zffiwe, 00, JiEreE (d9) 140306

Corporate Office: New Civil Air Terminal, Jhurheri, Mohali (Punjab) 140306

Tel No. : 0172-2242016, Fax No. 0172-2242003, email: secretary.chial@rediffmail.com, website: chial.org

CIN U63013CH2010G0I1031999

$
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
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AIRPORTS AUTHORITY OF INDIA

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 3

In pursuance of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the appointment of M/s
Narasimha Murthy & Company, Cost Accountants, Hyderabad as the Cost Auditor of the Company for
the financial year 2019-20 ata remuneration of Rs. 100,000/~ plus GST per annum and reimbursement
oftravelling & incidental expenses (On actual basis).

The Board recommends this resolution for approval of the Members for ratification of the
remuneration payable to the costauditor for the financial year 2019-20.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested in the said resolution.

By Order of the Board
For Chandigarh International Airport Limited

Place: Delhi SD/-
Date: 28.09.2019 Company Secretary

Wi FofeT: w7 dear 1, afEser FwEteg w9, Bffe oo, 59— 160003
Registered Office: Room No. 1, Project Office Building, Civil Airport, Chandigarh- 160003
T FraTT: 75 Afae v i, g, @iz (9919) 140306
Corporate Office: New Civil Air Terminal, Jhurheri, Mohali (Punjab) 140306
Tel No. : 0172-2242016, Fax No. 0172-2242003, email: secretary.chial @rediffmail.com, website: chial.org
CIN U63013CH2010G0I1031999
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}4!\__ Chandigarh International Airport Limited

ARPORTS AUTHORITY OF INDLA

MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : U63013CH2010G0OI031999
Name of the company : CHANDIGARH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
Registered Office :  ROOM NO. 1, PROJECT OFFICE BUILDING,

AIRPORTS AUTHORITY OF INDIA, CIVIL AIRPORT,
CHANDIGARH 160003

Name of the Member(s):

Registered Address:

E-mail Id: Folio No /Client ID: DP ID:

I/We, being the member(s) of shares of the above named company, hereby
appoint:

Name: E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature: , or failing him

Name: E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature: , or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 9" Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, 30” day of September, 2019 at 11.00 A.M. at
Room No. 1, Project Office Building, Civil Airport, Chandigarh- 160003 and at any adjournment
thereofin respect of suchresolutions asareindicated below:

TfiFa FrAtaT: F4 deqT 1, TREASET FEiET wad, e g, =€ie- 160003
Registered Office: Room No. 1, Project Office Building, Civil Airport, Chandigarh- 160003
FiaTve Fratera: 75 ffaes vaw =ffa=, g0, Frer (d9719) 140306
Corporate Office: New Civil Air Terminal, Jhurheri, Mohali (Punjab) 140306
Tel No. : 0172-2242016, Fax No. 0172-2242003, email: secretary.chial@rediffmail.com, website: chial.org
CIN Us3013CH2010G01031999

o

I'illlllll.llllIIIII.IIIIIII.I




Annual Veport 2018-2019
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
vt famrree

AIRPORTS AUTHORITY OF INDLA

Resolution No.

S

! Resolution(s) Vote
No.

For Against

1. Adoption of statement of Profit & Loss, Cash Flow Statement,
Balance Sheet, report of Board of Directors and Auditors for
the financial year ended 31st March, 2019.

2. To take note of appointment of M/s. Rajiv Goel & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, Chandigarh as Statutory Auditors of
the Company for the year 2019-20 & to ratify their
appointment and remuneration.

3 To take note of appointment of M/s. Narasimha Murthy &
Company, Cost Accountants, Hyderabad as Cost Auditors of
the Company for the year 2019-20 & to ratify their
remuneration.

Signed this day of 2019

Affix Revenue

St
Signature of Shareholder M

Signature of Proxy holder (s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.

TSFT FEATAT: A GGAT 1, GREASAT FETT waw, fAfde vaeE, =S<iE-160003
Registered Office: Room No. 1, Project Office Building, Civil Airport, Chandigarh- 160003
HIGTE Frater: 7% fAfae wae fifaw, e, arere (dme) 140306
Corporate Office: New Civil Air Terminal, Jhurheri, Mohali (Punjab) 140306
Tel No. : 0172-2242016, Fax No. 0172-2242003, email: secretary.chial@rediffmail.com, website: chial.org
CIN U63013CH2010G0I031999
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° ARG 2T TAXAe [oifHdS
Chandigarh International Airport Limited
famrras

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall)

9th Annual General Meeting on Monday, 30th day of September, 2019 at 11.00 A.M. at Room No. 1,
Project Office Building, Civil Airport, Chandigarh-160003

Full name ofthe members attending
(Inblock capitals)

Ledger Folio No./ClientID No. No.ofshares held:

Name of Proxy
(Tobefilled in, if the proxy attends instead of the member)

[ hereby record my presence at the 9th Annual General Meeting of the Chandigarh International
Airport Limited at Room No. 1, Project Office Building, Civil Airport, Chandigarh- 160003 on Monday,
30th September, 2019.

(Member’s /Proxy’s Signature)

Note:

1)  The Proxy, to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the meeting.

2)  AProxyneednotbeamember ofthe Company.

TfFa FATET: F dear 1, afErar FEte sEa, e o, HEE- 160003
Registered Office: Room No. 1, Project Office Building, Civil Airport, Chandigarh- 160003
Frare Fratea: 72 frfEe v zfifae, 7, JigreT (d974) 140306
Corporate Office: New Civil Air Terminal, Jhurheri, Mohali (Punjab) 140306
Tel No. : 0172-2242016, Fax No. 0172-2242003, email: secretary.chial@rediffmail.com, website: chial.org
CIN U63013CH2010G01031999
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Ninth Annual Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements ofthe Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019.

Your Directors take immense pride to report that Chandigarh International Airport Limited (CHIAL) is
the proud recipient of a 2018 Airport Service Quality (ASQ) Award for best Environment & Ambience by
Size and best Airport by Size & Region (2-5 Million Passengers) in ASIA PACIFIC by ACI World. Our
Airporthasalso won first prize in India Swachhta Award presented by AAI for the year 2018-19.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE COMPANY (Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Revenue from operations 10717.94 9235.12
Other Income 742.20 398.09
Total Income 11460.14 9633.21
Expenses 5457.54 4282.39
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation 6002.60 5350.82
Less: Depreciation 3383.35 3264.42
Profit/(Loss) after Depreciation but Before Tax 2619.25 2086.40
Less: Tax Expense 746.52 679.92
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 1872.73 1406.48
Balance brought forward (1303.24) (2709.72)
Balance carried forward 576.45 (1303.24)

2. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

(a) Financial overview:
During the year under review, your Company has achieved commendable growth in all key
performance parameters. The total revenue for the year ended 31.03.2019 was Rs. 114.60
Crores which recorded an impressive growth of 18.97% over the previous financial year. The
Company has reported a profit after tax of Rs. 18.72 Crores for the current year as compared to
the profitafter tax of Rs. 14.06 Crores reported during the last financial year.
(b) Aircraft Movements and Passenger Throughput
The details of Aircraft movements and Passenger throughput (Domestic & International) for
the financial year 2018-19 are presented below:
Particulars Domestic (In Nos.) | International (In Nos.)| Total (In Nos.)
Passenger Throughput 19,71,198 1,26,500 20,97,698
Aircraft Movements 16,136 867 17,003

lldlllll.llllllllllllllllllllllhll
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CHANGE IN THENATURE OF BUSINESS

There is no change in the nature of the business of the company.

. DIVIDEND

Company has commenced its commercial operations from 19.10.2015 and the company has started
earning profit from the year 2017-18 after initial loss of operations for two yearsi.e. 2015-16 & 2016-
17. Further, future expansion plans are also in line for making it more and more profitable in near
future. Thus, Dividend is not to be distributed till the future expansion plans are in pipeline.

. RESERVES

During the year, the Company has not transferred any amount to Reserves.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Paid Up Capital as on 31st March, 2019 was Rs. 969,44,94,050/ (Rupees Nine Hundred Sixty Nine
Crores Forty Four Lakhs Ninety Four Thousand and Fifty Only) comprises 0f96,94,49,405 (Ninety Six
Crores Ninety Four Lakhs Forty Nine Thousand Four Hundred and Five) equity shares of face value of
Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each . During the year under review, the Company had not issued shares with
differential voting rights nor granted Stock Options nor Sweat Equity nor Bonus Shares. Also, the
Company has notincreased its Share Capital and has not Buy Back its Securities.

DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

APPOINTMENTS

Directors

During the year, Mr. I. N. Murthy, Mr. G. Ravichandran w.e.f. 31.08.2018 and Ms. Gurneet Tej w.e.f.
28.09.2018, have been appointed as Nominee Directors ofthe Company.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
During the year, Mr. Rakesh Dembla w.e.f. 24.05.2018 have been appointed as Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) ofthe Company.

RESIGNATIONS

During the year, Mr. Sudhir Raheja, Mr. Suresh Seshadri w.e.f. 31.08.2018 and Mr. Ravi Bhagat we.f.
28.09.2018 hasresigned asa Nominee Director of the Company.

MEETINGS

During the financial year, Five (5) Board Meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap
between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Companies during the year
under review.

@ 5
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STATUTORY AUDITORS

Being a Government Company, the Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG) of India vide its letter
No./CA. V/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT,CIAL(0)/429 dated 02.08.2018 had appointed M/s
Rajiv Goel & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Chandigarh as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2018-19. The Statutory Auditors of the Company is being paid an
audit fee of Rs. 1,00,000/- plus GST per annum as directed by CAG and thereafter approval by
CHIAL Board.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or remarks. The notes to
Accounts and Auditors remarks in their report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further
comments.

C&AG'SREPORT

The comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India, through letter No.
GAP/CHIAL/A/C/6-54/2019-20/411 dated 09.09.2019 on the Audited Financial Statements of
the Company for the financial year ended 31.03.2019 under the Companies Act, 2013 has been
received. C&AG have offered NIL comments on the report.

INTERNALAUDITORS

The Board of Directors of your Company has appointed M/s Anil Puneet & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, Panchkula as Internal Auditors, pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year 2018-19.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. The company has adopted policies and procedures including the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of fraud and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of
reliable financial disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013. The internal audit team of the
company carries out extensive audits quarterly across all functional areas and submit its report.
Based on the report of the internal auditor, the process owners undertake corrective action in
their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls.

COSTAUDITOR

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of
your Company had appointed M/s. Narasimha Murthy & Company, Cost Accountants as Cost
Auditors for the financial year 2018-19 for conducting the audit of cost records of your company
in respect to Aeronautical Services as applicable under CETA heading covered under non-
regulated services sector. M/s. Narasimha Murthy & Company, have submitted the cost audit
report for the financial year 2018-19. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse
remarksinthe costauditreportforthe financial year 2018-19.
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. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the
Company.

. RISKMANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has adequate system of business risk evaluation and management to ensure
sustainable business growth and to promote pro-active approach in evaluating and resolving the
risks associated with the business. The Company has identified the potential risks such as
financial risk, legal & statutory risk and the internal process risk and has put in place appropriate
measures for its mitigation. Runway is also being managed by Air Force and watch hours are also
been decided by the Air Force. At present, the Company has not identified any element of risk
which may threaten the existence of the Company.

. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors of your company constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee to monitor
the CSR activities. Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities of the Company is
annexed as Annexure [ to thisreport.

. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
Asrequired pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) ofthe Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return as on 31st March,
2019 inthe prescribed Form MGT 9 is annexed as Annexure [I to thisreport.

. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company is notrequired to appoint Independent Directors under Section 149(4) and Rule 4 of
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. Hence, no declaration is
required.

. COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF

REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are not applicable to the Company and hence, the company has not devised any policy
relating to appointment of directors, payment of managerial remuneration, directors
qualification, positive attributes, independence of directors and other related matters as provided
under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

d
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STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 178(5) relating to constitution of Stakeholders Relationship Committee
are notapplicable to the Company and hence, the Company has not constituted such committee.

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 isnot applicable to the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

The significant events occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which
financial statements relate and the date of the report has been shown under disclosures to
Balance Sheet.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S
OPERATIONSIN FUTURE

During the year under review, there has been no such significant and material orders passed by
the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's
operationsin future.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Personnel and industrial relations were cordial and satisfactory during the year under review.
None of the employee has received remuneration exceeding the limit set out under Section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOREDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

There is no amount lying in Investor Education and Protection Fund as per the provisions of
Section 125 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

DEPOSITS

The Company has notaccepted any public deposits and as such, no amount on account of principal
or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

llillIIIIIIllllll.l.ll.llllll..hll
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(a)

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

During the year under review, the Company has not provided any loan and guarantees and has
not made any investment pursuant to Section 186 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS ORARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year under review, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been shown under
disclosures to Balance Sheet. These transactions are not likely to have a conflict with the
interest of the company. All the related party transactions are negotiated on arm’s length basis
and are intended to protect the interest of the company.

OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

As per the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, your company has
constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to address the complaints received regarding
sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees) are
covered under this policy. No complaints have been received during the financial year 2018-19.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo, as required to be disclosed under the Companies Act, 2013, are provided in
Annexure [l tothisreport.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company strongly believes that the spirit of Corporate Governance goes beyond the
statutory form. Sound Corporate Governance is a key driver of sustainable corporate growth
and long-term value creation for the stakeholders including shareholders, employees and
customers. Your Company is committed to maintain the highest level of transparency,
accountability and equity in operations. Your company always strive to follow the path of good
Governance through a broad framework of various processes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect
to Director's Responsibility Statement, itis hereby confirmed that -

In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2019, the applicable
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) have been followed along with proper explanations
relating to any material departures;

i
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The directors selected such accounting policies/practices and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of financial
year and of the profit of the Company for the year under review;

The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
otherirregularities;

The directors have prepared the Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019
onagoing concern basis; and

The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
allapplicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Chandigarh International Airport Limited

Place: Delhi Sd/-
Date: 28.09.2019 Chairman
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Annexure |

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

(1) A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR
policy and projects or Programmes:

Policy Statement

Our mission is to be a committed Corporate Citizen alive towards Social Responsibility with
aview to make a positive difference to society. CSR Policy intends to:
+ Strive for economic development that positively impacts the society at large with a
minimal resource footprint.
+ Embrace responsibility for the Company’s actions and encourage a positive impact
through its activities on hunger, poverty, malnutrition, environment, communities,
stakeholders and the society.

Organisation setup

The CSR projects will be implemented under the guidance of the Board’s Sub-Committee on
CSR which presently comprises three directors. The terms of reference of the Committee is
given below:

a) Torecommend the amountofexpenditure to be incurred on the activities referred
toin the CSR policy.

b) To monitor the implementation of Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the
Company from time to time.

c) The CSR Committee shall arrange to provide all required inputs to undertake CSR
activities and shall review all Social initiatives.

d) TheCSRcommittee shall update the Board of Directors on periodically basis.

Scope of activities

The CSR activities are as per the provisions of Schedule VII ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

: &
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(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Composition of the CSR Committee:

(i)  Sh. Anuj Aggarwal, Chairman (Nominee Director)

(i)  Sh.]. Ganesan, Member (Nominee Director)

(iii) Smt. Gurneet Tej, Member (Nominee Director)

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:

Rs. (552.68) Lakhs

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above):
NIL

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: NIL

(b) Amount unspent, if any: NIL

(c)  Manner in which the amount spent: N.A.

Reasons for not spending 2% of average net profit of the last three financial years:

The applicability for spending arise in case of average net profits in last three years
whereas CHIAL has not earned average net profits during the last three financial
years.

Responsibility statement of the CSR Committee:

The implementation and monitoring of Company CSR Policy is in compliance with
CSR objectives and policy of the company.

SD/- SD/-
(Suneel Dutt) (L.N. Murthy)
Chief Executive Officer Chairman - CSR Committee
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Annexure II

FORM NO.MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2019

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 |CIN U63013CH2010G0I1031999
2 Registration Date 28/01/2010
3 | Name of the Company | CHANDIGARH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
4 | Category/ COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
Sub-category of the | UNION GOVERNMENT COMPANY
Company

5 | Address of the | ROOM NO. 1, PROJECT OFFICE BUILDING, AIRPORTS
Registered office & | AUTHORITY OF INDIA, CIVIL AIRPORT, CHANDIGARH-

contact details 160003, TEL NO.0172-2242012
6 | Whether listed | NO
company

7 Name, Address & | N.A.
contact details of the
Registrar & Transfer
Agent, if any.

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

S. Name and Description of | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the
No. | main products / services Product/service | company
1 | Supporting and auxiliary 63 100%

transport activities, travel
agencies etc.

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. | Name and Address Pan No. Subsidiary/ % of Applicable
No | of the Company Associate | Shares Held Section

NIL
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of | No.of Shares held at the beginning of | No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Shareholders the year [As on 31-March-2017] [As on 31-March-2018] %
h
Demat | Physical Total % of | Demat | Physical Total % of ﬁuz:?fe
Total Total thie yefr
Share Share
s s

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
HUF
b) Central Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Govt
c) State : 47,50,30, | 47,50,30, . 47,50,30,2 | 47,50,30,2 .
Govt(s) N 210 210 @ | 10 10 i i
d) Bodies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Corp.
¢) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
f)Any other - 2 49,4419, | 49,44,19, Nil 49,44,19,1 | 49,44,19,1 .

PSU N 195 195 o 95 95 s i
Sub-total A Nil 96,94,49, | 96,94,49, 100 Nil 96,94,49,4 | 96,94,49,4 100 Nil
(1) 405 405 05 05
(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Individual
b) Other - Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Individuals
& Bodies Corp, Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
d) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
e)Any other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total A Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(2)
Total
glf‘;:i'::;‘tl:;f Nil | 969449, | 969449, | 100 | .| 969449, | 969449, | 100 i

405 405 405 405

A(1+2)
B. Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Funds
b)Banks/ FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
¢) Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

l-dlllllllIlllllllllill.l.lllllh.l
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d) State
Govt(s)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

e) Venture
Capital Funds

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

f) Insurance
Companies

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

g) Flis

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

i) Others
(specify)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Sub-total B
(1)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

2.Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corp.

i) Indian

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

ii) Overseas

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

b) Individuals

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

c)Others
(specify)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Sub-total B
(2)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Total Public
Shareholding
B (1+2)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

Nil

96,94,49,
405

96,94,49,
405

100

Nil

96,94,49,
405

96,94,49,
405

100

Nil
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

S. | Shareholder | Shareholding at the beginning of | Shareholding at the end of the year
No 's Name the year
0,
No.of | % of total %of Shares No.of | 9% oftotal %of Shares o change_in
shareholding
Shares | Shares of Pledged / Shares Shares of Pledged / duri
uring the
the encumbered the encumbered ae
company | to total shares company to total y
shares

1 | Airports
Authority of | 424% | 51 0 gy 51 0 No Change
India (AAI) ' ’

Z | Greater
Mohali Area
Development 2275 245 0 =378 24.5 0 No Change

4 15,105 5,105

Authority
(GMADA)

3 | Haryana
Urban
Development 2375, 245 0 Shrat 245 0 No Change

: 15,105 5,105

Authority
(HUDA)

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

allotment /transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc.):

At the end of the year

S. | Particulars Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding during
No beginning of the year the year
No. of | 9% of total No. of | % oftotal
shares shares of the | shares shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. NO CHANGE

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

S. | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No | Shareholders beginning year
of the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of the
the company
company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters

nnEdnupunEEuENENEnuuRRuEneeunane e

$




= Annual Report 2018-2019

Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase [decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc.):

At the end of the year

NIL

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc.):

At the end of the year

S. | Shareholding of each Directors and each Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No | Key Managerial Personnel beginning year
of the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of the
the company
company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the G

V) INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
payment.
Secured
Loan_s Hnscoared Deposits Total Indebtedness
excluding Loans
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year

i) Principal Amount

i) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the financial
year

* Addition

* Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

i) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

NIL
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VI) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total Amount

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

NIL

B. Remuneration to other directors

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total Amount

Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board/ committee
meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

NIL

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO CFO (From
24.05.2018-
31.03.2019)

Cs

Total

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained

39,67,445 17,06,818

6,45,060

63,19,323

llqll-ln-l-nllll--lnnll-luunl
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1961

in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

Nil Nil Nil Nil

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Nil Nil Nil Nil
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil

3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil

4 Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
- as % of profit Nil Nil Nil Nil
- others, specify... Nil Nil Nil Nil

5 Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total 39,67,445 17,06,818 6,45,060 63,19,323

VIL. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty Authority Appeal made,
Companies Act Description / Punishment/ [RD / NCLT/ ifany (give
Compounding fees COURT] Details)

imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

For Chandigarh International Airport Limited

SD/-
Chairman

|

NI R RN RN ERE R R R R RN RN RN N



g

Annual Veport 2018-2019

The information on Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,2013 read with
Rule 8 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules,2014,are as follows:

a) Conservation of energy

(i) | the steps taken or impact | 1. Around 35% to 40 % of all the electrical fixtures are of

on conservation of energy LED instated during project time.

2. 400 Watts 375 Nos. HPSV Roof fitting replaced with
200 Watt LED and 250/150 Watt MH Light replaced
with 80 watt LED.

3. All Electrical Motors are of EFF-1Class i.e most energy
efficient motors.

4. Motors are fitted with VFD (Variable Frequency
Drives) controls.

5. HVAC Chillers are of COP 6.3.

6. 1800 KVAR capacitor bank has been installed to take
care of power factor.

7. All AHUs, Cooling Towers are fitted with Variable
Frequency Drives.

8. Conventional FIDS monitors have been replaced with
Energy efficient LED monitors.

9. Conversion of balance conventional type light fixtures
to energy efficient LED type light fixture is in process.

(ii) | the steps taken by the | A work to erect SMWp (3MWP in phase-I and ZMWP in

company for  utilizing | Phase -II), ground mount solar power plant was

alternate sources of energy | awarded to M/s Renew Solar Power New Delhi, on

RESCO (BOO) Model.

Phase - I i.e. 3 MWp Solar Power Plant commissioned on
date 26.10.2016. Net metering connection received from
PSPCL state electricity board & system put in operation
w. e. f. 10/08/2019.

(iif) | the capital investment on | No capital investment done. 3 MWp Solar Power Plant is
energy conservation | completely on RESCO Model (BOO Basis) through M/s
equipment’s Renew Solar Power, New Delhi, Per unit charges of
electricity is Rs. 4.64 till 25 Yrs. and net per unit saving
is Rs. 2.99 (7.23 - 4.64).

Power Consumption:
Electricity 2018-19 2017-18
a) Units purchased (in lakhs) 56.98 61.97
b) Total amount (Rs. in lakhs) 506.69 473.02
c) Rate per unit (in Rs.) PSPCL 8.89 (Avg) 7.63 (Avg.)
d) Units purchased (in lakhs) - Solar Power 19.09 20.25
e) Total amount (Rs. In Lakhs) - Solar 88.58 93.97
Amount
f) Rate per unit (in Rs.) - Solar 4.64 4.64
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g)Own generation through Diesel Generator 2.02 1.08
(Units in lakhs)

h) Unit per liter of diesel oil (KWH/litre) 1.53 1.85
i) Cost per unit (in Rupees) 40.76 56.59

b) Technology absorption

(@

the efforts made towards

technology absorption

1. Technology of LED Lamps in replacement of FTL,
CFL lamps.

2. Technology LED light in replacement of HPSV and
MH Light.

3. Technology of Variable Frequency Drive for
Electrical motors.

4. Highest Energy Efficiency motors.

(i)

the benefits derived like
product improvement, cost
reduction, product development
or import substitution

Reduction in operational cost by highest energy
efficiency and less power consumption.

(iii)

in case of imported technology
(imported during the last three
years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year)-

NIL

(a) the details of technology
imported

N.A.

(b) the year of import

N.A.

(c)whether the technology been
fully absorbed

N.A.

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas
where absorption has not taken
place, and the reasons thereof

N.A.

(iv)

the expenditure incurred on
Research and Development

N.A.

c) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo details during the year is as under:

Foreign exchange Earnings

NIL

Foreign exchange Outgo

Rs. 733.32 Lakhs (USD 10,39,765.12)

For Chandigarh International Airport Limited

SD/-
Chairman

J
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance is essentially an ethos which guides and directs the management of the
Company in handling its affairs in the best interest of all the stakeholders and promotes fairness,
transparency, integrity and societal expectations.

The Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) of the Government of India has issued Guidelines on
Corporate Governance which are applicable to all Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSE's)soasto
achieve highest standard of fairness, transparency, trust, integrity, responsibility and accountability
withastrongemphasis on the ethical and professional conduct.

Chandigarh International Airport Limited (CHIAL) believes that an organization must provide
empowerment to the executive management and simultaneously create a mechanism of checks and
balances, which ensures that the decision-making powers vested in the executive management are
used with due care and responsibility and are not being misused. Our Governance practices stems
from an inherent desire to improve, innovate and reflects the culture of trusteeship that is deeply
ingrained in our value system and forms part of the strategic thought process.

CHIAL is committed to the adoption of best governance practices and its adherence in the true spirit,
atall times. CHIAL's Corporate Governance processes continuously reinforce and help in actualizing
the CHIAL's beliefin ethical corporate citizenship and is manifested through exemplary standards of
ethical behavior, both within the organization as well as in external relationships.

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors ("Board" or "the Board") of any organization is the flag bearer of the
corporate governance principle and practice and it oversees and ensures that long term interest of
all the stakeholders is protected. The Company is managed by the Board of Directors, which
formulates strategies and policies, oversees their implementation and also reviews Company
Performance periodically. Board of Directors is at the core of the Company’s corporate governance
practices and oversees how the management serves and protects the long term interest of the
stakeholders.

Chandigarh International Airport Limited (CHIAL) is a Private Limited Company incorporated
under Companies Act, 1956 with Airports Authority of India (AAI) having 51% Equity Stake, Punjab
Government (Greater Mohali Area Development Authority-GMADA) and Haryana Government
(Haryana Urban Development Authority-HUDA) each having 24.5% Equity Stake.

Articles of Association of the Company stipulates that the number of the Directors shall not be less
than nine and not more than twelve. The number of Directors on the Board of the Company shall be
in proportion to the shareholding of AAl, GMADA and HUDA. As long as the Board of Directors
consists of nine Directors, AAI shall have right to nominate five Directors and GMADA and HUDA
shall have right to nominate two Directors each. Hence, CHIAL comprises of Nominee Directors only.
The members on the Board are highly experienced personnel in their respective functional areas
who provide directions to the management on operational issues, adoption of systems and best
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practices in managementand oversee compliance of various statutory, legal and other requirements.

Every director has disclosed his/her concern or interest in other Company or companies or body
corporate firms or other association with individuals, by givinga declaration in writing.

The Composition of the Board as on 31.03.2019 are as under:-

Representatives of Airports Authority of India
Sh. Anuj Aggarwal Chairman
Sh. Narasimha Murthy Indrakanti Nominee Director
Sh. Rakesh Kalra Nominee Director
Sh. Ravichandran Gurusamy Nominee Director
Representative of MoCA
Sh. Venkatramana R. Hegde | Nominee Director
Representatives of Punjab Government
Sh. Tejveer Singh, IAS Nominee Director
Smt. Gurneet Tej, IAS Nominee Director
Representatives of Haryana Government
Sh. Devender Singh, IAS Nominee Director
Dr. ]. Ganesan, [AS Nominee Director

Changes in the Board of Directors

During the year, Sh. I. N. Murthy, Sh. G. Ravichandran w.e.f. 31.08.2018 and Smt. Gurneet Tej w.e.f.
28.09.2018, have been appointed as Nominee Directors of the Company. The Board welcomes all the
new Directors and hopes that the Company shallimmensely benefitfrom their rich experience.

During the year, Sh. Sudhir Raheja, Sh. Suresh Seshadri w.e.f. 31.08.2018 and Sh. Ravi Bhagat w.e.f.
28.09.2018 has resigned as a Nominee Director of the Company. The Board appreciated the efforts
and valuable contribution put in and guidance provided by Sh. S. Raheja during his tenure as
Chairman of the Company. The journey, under his chairmanship, has been an absolute pleasure anda
learningexperience.

The Board also appreciated the hard-work and dedication towards work put in by Sh. S. Suresh and
Sh. Ravi Bhagat during his tenure asa member of the Board.

Key Managerial Personnel

As per Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013, the following Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
were appointed/continuing:

«  Sh.Suneel Dutt, Chief Executive Officer
«  Sh.Rakesh Dembla, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f.24.05.2018)
e  Smt.Avneet Kaur, Company Secretary

@ -
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BOARD MEETINGS

CHIAL complies with the Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules & Regulations
applicable w.ct. convening and conducting the Board /Committee Meetings. The meetings of the
Board are held regularly within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and are
convened by giving appropriate advance notice after approval of the Chairman of the Board. The
meeting of the Board are conducted as per a structured agenda and members of the Board have
complete access toall information of the Company and are also free to recommend inclusion of any
subject matter in the agenda for discussion. Detailed agenda containing the management reports
and the explanatory statements are circulated in advance amongst the members of the Board for
facilitating meaningful, informed and focussed decisions at the meetings. Where it is not
practicable to circulate any document or the agenda note for a particular item of business, the
same is tabled with the approval of Chairman and majority of the Board members. Senior officials
are called to provide additional inputs to the items being discussed by the Board, as and when
necessary.

During the financial year 2018-19, Five (5) meetings of the Board were held, the details of which
are as below:

S. No. | Meeting No. Date of Board Board No. of Nominee
Meeting Strength Directors present
1 36 27/06/2018 9 6
2 37 31/08/2018 9 6
3 38 28/09/2018 9 3
4 39 15/11/2018 9 8
5 40 14/03/2019 9 7

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting are given hereunder:

Name of Director No. of Board No.of Board | Attendance at No. of
Meetings held Meetings last Annual Directorship*
during his/her attended | General Meeting

tenure (AGM)

Sh. Anuj Aggarwal 5 4 Absent 3

Sh. Narasimha Murthy 4 2 Absent 4

Indrakanti (w.e.f,

31.08.2018)

Sh. Rakesh Kalra 5 5 Present 1

Sh. Ravichandran Gurusamy 4 3 Absent 3

(w.ef 31.08.2018)

Sh. Venkatramana R. Hegde 5 0 Absent 3

Sh. Tejveer Singh, IAS 5 3 Absent 1

Smt. Gurneet Tej, IAS 3 2 Absent 2

(w.e.f 28.09.2018)

Sh. Devender Singh, IAS 5 3 Absent 8

Dr. J. Ganesan, IAS 5 3 Present 4

* No. of Directorships in entities including this entity as on 31st March, 2019 is taken into account.
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Recording of Minutes of the Board Meetings and follow-up mechanism

The minutes of the each Board Meetings are recorded by the Company Secretary. Draft minutes are
circulated to members for their comments and finalized minutes are entered into the minutes book
within 30 Days of the conclusion of the meeting. Decisions taken in the Board Meetings are
communicated to respective departments for necessary action and action taken report on decisions of
the previous meetings(s) is placed at the succeeding meeting of the Board for information of the
members.

Compliances

While preparing the Agenda, notes to agenda and minutes of the meetings(s) adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations including Companies Act 2013 read with rulesissued there
under, and secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is
ensured.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is notapplicable to the Company. Hence, Audit
Committee is not constituted.

4, NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are not applicable to the Company and hence, the Company has not constituted such
committee.

5. STAKEHOLDERRELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 178(5) relating to constitution of Stakeholders Relationship Committee
are notapplicable to the Company and hence, the Company has not constituted such committee.

6. CORPORATESOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (hereinafter referred
as “the CSR Committee”) as per the provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
composition of CSR Committee ason 31.03.2019 is given below:

Sr.No. | Name of the Member Designation Status in the Committee
1. Sh. Anuj Aggarwal Nominee Director Chairman
2 Smt. Gurneet Tej, IAS Nominee Director Member
3. Dr.]. Ganeasan, IAS Nominee Director Member

Mrs. Avneet Kaur, Company Secretary of the Company shall act as the Secretary to the CSR Committee.

o
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The terms of reference ofthe CSR Committee are:

* Torecommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in the CSR policy.

* Tomonitor theimplementation of Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to
time.

* The CSR Committee shall arrange to provide all required inputs to undertake CSR activities and shall
review all Social initiatives. The CSR committee shall update the Board of Directors on periodically
basis.

During the year, two (2) meetings of CSR Committee were held on 28/09/2018 and 14/03/2019. The
attendance details are as under:

Name of the Director | Designation | No.of Board Meetings held | No. of Board Meetings
during his/her tenure attended
Sh. Anuj Aggarwal Chairman 2 2
Smt. Gurneet Tej, IAS Member 2 1
Dr. ]. Ganesan, [AS Member 2 1
7. GENERALBODY MEETINGS
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meetings of the Company are held at the Registered Office of the Company i.e.
Room No. 1, Project Office Building, Airports Authority of India, Civil Airport, Chandigarh - 160004
The details of such meetings held during the last three years are as under:

Year Date Time Special Resolution
Passed
2018-19 30.09.2019 11:00 AM Nil
2017-18 28.09.2018 1:30 PM Nil
2016-17 29.09.2017 11:30 AM Nil

8. DISCLOSURES

)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

During the year, there were no transactions of material nature with the Directors or the
Management or the subsidiary or relatives that had potential conflict of interest with the
Company.

The details of “Related Party Disclosures” have been disclosed at Note No. 29 in the Notes forming
partofAccountsin the Annual Report.

There was no case of non-compliance of provisions of Companies Act, 2013 or any other statutory
laws. The statutory authorities have also not passed any stricture or imposed penalty on the
company under any Act/Rules.

The Company has complied with the requirements of DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governances,

-ldlll-lllllll-lll-lll-lll-lumlll

- 2




Annual RNeport 2018-2019

10.

11.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Annual Report contains Audited Annual Accounts, Director’s Report, Management Discussion
and Analysis Report, Auditor’s Report, Corporate Governance Report including information for
the Shareholders and other important information is circulated to the members and other

entitle thereto.
CHIAL produce periodic reports and press releases covering important matters relating to

CHIAL.
CHIAL also have a facility for information sharing with stakeholders through the use of

Information and Communication Technologies (ICT) to ensure prompt delivery of document,
less paper consumption, save trees and avoid loss of documents in transit.

TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS

No specific training programmes were arranged for Board Members. However, at the Board/
Committee Meeting, detailed presentations are made by senior executives / professionals /
consultants on businessrelated issues, riskassessmentetc.

REVIEW OF COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE LAWS

The Board has periodically reviewed the compliance reports of all applicable laws to the
company and has ensured the compliance of all the applicable laws.

lIillIlll.ll.III.IIIIIII.IIIIIIII.
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CEO/CFO Certification

To

The Board of Directors
CHIAL.

We, Suneel Dutt, Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Rakesh Dembla, Chief Financial Officer (CFO),
certify that:

a. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended
31.03.2019 onthatdate and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

. the said statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
factor contain statements that mightbe misleading;

ii.  the said statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are
in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. Thereare, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company
duringtheyear which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

c.  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
company pertaining to financial reporting. We have not come across any reportable deficiencies
inthe design or operation of such internal controls.

d. Wehaveindicated to theauditors:
L. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year financial
year2018-19.
ii. Thesignificant changes in accounting policies during the financial year 2018-19 and their
disclosures in the notes to the financial statement.
iii. Thattherearenoinstances ofsignificant fraud of which we have become aware.

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Chandigarh Suneel Dutt Rakesh Dembla
Date:28.09.2019 Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The objective of this report is to share and keep you abreast with the happenings and transformations
occurring within CHIAL, that in the industry and economy, its technology and its overall business
strategies. Among other things, the Management Discussion & Analysis provides an overview of the
previous year of operations and how CHIAL fared in that time. It also provides the report on the
upcoming year, outlining future goals and approaches to new projects. We begin with a general review of
the industry, followed by the operational and financial details of CHIAL including details of its human
resources.

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing CHIAL's objectives, projections,
estimate expectations may be "forward looking statements". Actual results could differ materially from
those expressed orimplied. Important factors that could influence CHIAL's operations include economic
developments within the country, demand and supply conditions in the industry, input prices, changes
in Government regulations, tax laws and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations.

INDUSTRY STRUCTUREAND DEVELOPMENTS

The aviation industry is a service industry providing transport services in which Indian Aviation
Industry can broadly be divided into military and civil aviation. Ministry of Civil Aviation is responsible
for civilian aviation and Ministry of Defence is responsible for the Indian Air Force.

Airlines and Airports Operator are the two main players/Stakeholder in the industry. While Airlines
offer the actual transport service whereas Airports Operator provide the ground Navigational /
Terminal, City Side infrastructure to handle aircraft movements.

India's civil aviation has witnessed phenomenal growth rate ofapprox. 18% in the last 3 years. According
to IATA Traffic Study, India, at 7th position as of now in the world, is likely to take 3rd position by 2023-24
by overtaking UK, Japan, Spain & Germany. The current rate of the growth in domestic aviation sector of
India is the highest globally. However, it said that its projection of India being the third largest aviation
market globally by 2024 is contingent upon its airportinfrastructure and capacity growth.

The government has allowed 100 per cent FDI under automatic route in Airports; Ground Handling
Services subject to sectoral regulations & security clearance, and for Maintenance and Repair
organizations; flying training institutes; and technical training institutions. 100 percent FDI under
automatic route is also allowed in Non-Scheduled Air Transport Services and Helicopter
services/seaplane services with DGCA approval.

Further, 100% FDI under automatic route is allowed in Scheduled air transport service, regional air
transport service and domestic scheduled passenger airlines, however, FDI over 49 per cent would
require governmentapproval.

India's aviation industry is largely untapped with huge growth opportunities, considering that air
transport is still expensive for majority of the country's population, of which nearly 40 per cent is the
upwardly mobile middle class. And the need is to implement efficient and rational decisions that would
boost India's civil aviation industry. With the right policies and relentless focus on quality, cost and
passenger interest, India would be well placed to achieve its vision of becoming the third-largest

aviation market soon.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Chandigarh International Airport Limited (CHIAL) is a joint venture company with Airports Authority
of India having 51% Equity Stake, Punjab Government (Greater Mohali Area Development Authority-
GMADA) and Haryana Government (Haryana Urban Development Authority-HUDA) each having 24.5%
Equity Stake to operate, develop and maintain the Chandigarh International Airport (a new state of art
International Airport at Mohali, Punjab). The New Civil Air Terminal has been established with distinct
green building features on a land area of 300 Acres. The new International Airport is operational from
October 19, 2015.

Since its inception, Chandigarh International Airport has added umpteen amenities along with
increased air service to support the needs of rapidly expanding population base. Presently, 5 airline
companies are operating flights to more than 10 destinations, including 2 international destinations.
Air India was the first flight operator to take off an international flight from Chandigarh Airport to
Sharjahin September 2016.

With the foremost objective to provide high quality aviation facility, which is both safe and secure, team
CHIAL, also strives to provide a comfortable and delightful stay to the passengers at the airport. The
modern Integrated Terminal Building is made of glass and steel structure and is equipped with the
modern state-of-the-art equipment and passenger facilities. Terminal Building is fully air conditioned
with Common Use Terminal Equipment (CUTE), Flight Information Display System (FIDS) and IN-line
Baggage handling system etc. for efficiency of operations. Terminal Building is designed on the concept
of eco-building with energy efficient features and qualifies for a “4 STAR” Green Rating for Integrated
Habitat Assessment (GRIHA). Local Art & Culture of Punjab & Haryana State and the Union Territory,
Chandigarh is depicted in the terminal building through murals & paintings.

CHIAL's persistent efforts to improve the services and passenger facilities at its airports have placed it
amongst the best service providers in the world. ACI World 2018, adjudged Chandigarh International
Airport Limited, the best Airport by Size and Region and Best environment and ambience by Size and
Region (2-5 Million Passengers) in ASIA PACIFIC. Chandigarh International Airport has achieved an
overall satisfaction score of 4.90 for the year 2018-19 in the ACI Airport Service Quality passenger
survey (ASQ). CHIAL has emerged as Firstin INDIA and won Swachhta Award evaluated by AAL

Revenue Mix

CHIAL's revenues can be broadly categorized into Aeronautical, Non-aeronautical, Cargo, Airport lease
Revenues and other from Allied services such as Consultancy projects. Aeronautical revenues for CHIAL
are dominated by User Development Fees (UDF) whereas its Non Aeronautical revenues come from
commercial operations at Airports like Retail, F&B, Car parking, other concessions and rentals in
terminalsand city side premises.

Revenue of the CHIAL increased by X 14.84 crore (16.07%) in 2018-19 as compared to previous year,
details thereofare as follows:
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J

Amount (in X Crore)

S. | Revenue FY 18-19 FY17-18 Increase(+) or Increase(+) or
No. | Constituent Decrease(-) Over Decrease(-) in
last FY in terms of terms of %
Rs.

1. | User Development 59.50 45.41 14.09 31.03
Fees

2. | Other Aeronautical 377 5.50 (1.73) (31.45)
Airport services

3. | Passenger Service 13.23 13.55 (0.32) (2.36)
Fee (Security)

4. Non-Aeronautical 30.19 27.34 2.85 10.42
Airport services

5. | Cargo revenue 0.49 0.54 (0.05) (9.26)
Total Revenue 107.18 92.34 14.84 16.07

Revenue Mix (FY 2018-19)

= User Development fees

B Other Aeronautical Revenue

u Passenger Service Fee (Security)
® Non-Aeronautical Revenue

m Cargo Revenue

Cargo revenue is minimal since at CHIAL there is no Cargo Terminal. Construction of New Integrated
Cargo hub at CHIAL has been awarded on BOT (Build Operate and Transfer) basis to M/s AAI Cargo
Logistics and Allied Services Ltd., a wholly owned Subsidiary Company of Airports Authority of India
and sameis in progress.
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CHIAL's key expense categories include employee costs (comprising employee salaries, allowance and

contributions to provident fund), operating expenses including aviation security, administration
expenses, financing costs and depreciation.

The expenditure has increased by Rs. 12.94 crores (17.15%) in 2018-19 as compared to previous year
thereof, details thereofare as follows:-

Amount (in XCrores)

Sr. No. | Cost Constituent FY 18-19 | FY17-18 Increase(+) or Increase(+) or
Decrease(-) Over | Decrease(-)in
last FY terms of %
1. Employee Benefits 4.89 5.22 (0.33) (6.32)
Expenses
2 Operating Expenses 16.83 13.31 3.52 26.45
3. Administrative and 431 3.12 1.19 38.14
Other Expenses
4, Security Expenses 27.74 20.49 7.25 35.38
5. Depreciation 33.83 32.64 1.19 3.65
Expenses
6. Other Expenses 0.81 0.69 0.12 17.39
Total 88.41 75.47 12.94 17.15

Cost Mix (FY 2018-19)

= Employee Benefits Expenses

B Operating Expenses

 Administrative and Other Expenses

B Security Expenses

® Depreciation Expenses

® Other Expenses

Increase in Operating Expenditure was mainly on account of increase in R&M expenses, Up-keep

expenses and electricity expenses. Further, Security expenses increased due to deployment of
additional CISF manpower.
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TrafficHandled (2018-19Vs2017-18)

There has been decline in Passenger throughput and Aircraft Traffic Movements in 2018-19 as
compared to previous year due to:

«  Complete Airport closure from 12 May, 2018 to 31 May, 2018 for Runway Resurfacing work by

Indian Air Force.
« Reductionin Airportoperation hours from 22.00 hrs to 16.00 hrs from Monday to Saturday.
¢  Fullclosure on Sunday’s from Aprto Jun, 18 and partial closure fromJul, 18.

The total Passenger throughput and Aircraft Traffic Movements have decreased by 1.87% and 9.15%
respectively. Details of traffic handled during the year and comparison with previous year are given
below:-

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18 % change
Passengers Throughput (in numbers)

Domestic 1971198 1989691 (0.93)
International 126500 148048 (14.55)
Total 2097698 2137739 (1.87)
Aircraft Movements (in numbers)

Domestic 16136 17664 (8.65)
International 867 1051 (17.51)
Total 17003 18715 (9.15)

KEYSTRENGTHS AND WEAKNESSES

Chandigarh International Airport serves dynamic and growing Chandigarh region which has
proximity to 5 states i.e Jammu & Kashmir, Uttranchal, Punjab, Haryana & Himachal Pradesh and has
grown tremendously in the last 10 years with more flights to national and international destinations.
By 2022, Chandigarh Airport is anticipating to serve approx. 4 million passengers. In this regard, a
proposal for Extension of Corridor is in progress. The Airport is beginning to attract more business
aviation to its modern facilities and is expected to increase its share at the airport over the next few
years. The catchment area of Chandigarh contains huge number of international travelers and
availability of business class travelers is also huge. Per capita income of Chandigarh is among the

highestin India.

CHIAL serves the state of Punjab where NRI footprint is high travelling to destinations like Europe, US,
London, Canada etc. which are high in demand from Chandigarh. Potential for UK/US/Canada/Pacific
Countries is very huge but due to limitations of Bilateral Rights, International flights to these
destinationsare not able to start from Chandigarh which is one of the key weakness.

: ®
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MA]JOR OPPORTUNITES AND THREATS

Airports have now become more than just a port that peaple travel through on their destination,
with many now operating as Hubs that send passengers around the world. Owing to the airport’s
strategic location i.e. closer to the tri city of Mohali, Chandigarh & Panchkula, there is an ample
opportunity for growth of city side development, Huge prospects of capturing the NRI & tourist
driven market of Punjaband Haryana. Increasing passenger traffic year on year would led to a strong
network of destination.

Further, there is a huge potential to develop as an MRO hub being the second highest cost component
for Indian Carriers.

Leverage on Non-aeronautical Revenues such as retail, advertising, vehicle parking etc; Increasing
the Cargo Business, Leverage on Improved Technology, Huge Investment potential in the Industry,
International opportunities for consulting and other services and marketing initiatives to improve
engagementwith customersare being seen as great opportunities.

The wide variations in airport tariffs create challenges for domestic and foreign airlines who have to
recover the same from passengers. Many domestic and global investors and lenders have
highlighted this as one of the key reasons for staying away from investing in India, despite being the
fastest growing aviation market in the world. The government is planning to correct the anomaly of
wide variations in airport tariffs by amending the Airports Economic Regulatory Authority of India
(AERA) act to have provisions for new tariff models for airports as well as change the definition of
major aerodromes. Hence, the major threat to CHIAL is that AERA tariff proposal has been approved
till 2021 and further, new tariff proposal is to be submitted which can lead to decrease in revenue of
CHIAL.

Further, Increasing competition from other regional airports, Economic fluctuation, Unpredicted
rate growth, Stricter environment & safety norms and Terrorism are also being considered as major
threats. Also, Airport Industry is highly Capital-intensive Industry and it takes much longer term to
recover the higher costof control.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

Hazardous activities affecting safety, inadequate financial processes and IT back-up systems are
amongst the most typical operational risks within the Aviation industry. Other Operational risks
identified include potential degradation of service delivery standards, unforeseen disruption to
flow management, maintenance challenges to aging facilities. Further, Strategic risks like decisions
related to pricing, development of airportinfrastructure, findings new products or markets, alliance
decisions which will affect future operations decisions.

Compliance risks regard the adherence with external regulations and legislations, and any non-
compliance may lead to heavy penalties and above all loss of reputation. Also breach of contract,

even though unintentionally, may bring legal consequences impacting CHIAL. Further, CHIAL's
operations are exposed to a variety of financial risks too like credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
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CHIAL understand the significance of risk management and its criticality for organization’s success
and business continuity. Thus, the Company has adequate system of business risk evaluation and
management to ensure sustainable business growth and to promote pro-active approach in
evaluating and resolving the risks associated with the business. Furthermore, the decisions at every
level including Board level are taken considering the risk involved. Also, Audit function reports the
efficacy of risk management controls which helps the management in improving the measures
required to be taken in thisregard.

INTERNAL CONTROLSAND PROCEDURES

CHIAL has a sound system of internal controls which ensures compliance with statutory
requirements, regulations and various policies and guidelines of the Company. Besides, Statutory
Audit and Audit by the C&AG, regular and exhaustive internal audits are conducted through
professional agencies to ensure that a proper system of checks and balance is in place in the
Company to take care thatall the assets are safeguarded and protected against any possible loss and
all the transactions are authorized, recorded and reported praoperly.

Internal Audit is conducted as per the Accounting Standards and Rules/Policies formulated by the
Company from time to time. The Company has a well - defined Delegations of Powers (DOP) in place,
which lays down the powers for different managerial levels and Committees to facilitate faster
decision making. The systems and procedures laid down by the Company ensure maximum
transparency in all commercial deals. The various policies, procedures and guidelines are
continuously reviewed and modified from time to time based on experience gained in the past
transactions so as to improve the effectiveness of the systems of due diligence of associates and risk
mitigation.

Vigilance division, AAI oversees that the guidelines of the Government and the rules/procedures of
the Company are strictly adhered to/implemented in all matters. The Vigilance Division conducts
inspection of the Company and makes suggestions for taking corrective /preventive action.

OUTLOOK

The Civil Aviation Industry in India has ushered in a new era of expansion. It is considered to be one
of the fastest growing industry in the country and is expected to become the third largest aviation
market in the near future. As per the report of ACI, India is leading the Asia Pacific Region with
highest growth in Air passenger traffic. So, the outlook for the airport sector remains positive.

Chandigarh International Airport is a customs airport which serves the Union Territory Chandigarh
and other Indian states of Punjab, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh etc. The airport runway is located in
the Union Territory of Chandigarh while the International Terminalis located on the southern side of
the runway in Jhurheri, Mohali, Punjab. The present runway 11/29 has length of 10,400 ft. The
runway 11 uses a CAT-1ILS system and runway 29 uses a CAT-II ILS system as of now. The terminal is
equipped with aero - bridges and apron for parking wide bodied jet aircrafts. Since its inception,
Chandigarh International Airport has added many amenities, and significantly increased air service
to support the needs of the rapidly expanding population base. The airport is poised to continue
growing as the primary air - service facility in the growing region and is considered as the air
gateway to the northern partof India. With the proposed expansion plans of the airport, tremendous
growth has been envisaged and a highly positive outlook for the region is anticipated. The
environment in which CHIAL operates is dynamic and changing and CHIAL would be able to respond

to the changes inthe environment.
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DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Company has commenced its commercial operations from 19.10.2015 and initial loss of operations for
firsttwoyearsi.e.2015-16 & 2016-17.Expected revenue breakeven was nearly 6-7 years initially, which
hasbeen achieved in a record time of 3 years. The passenger flow at the airport has witnessed a CAGR of
approx. 28% from nearly 0.64 millionsin 2010-11 to 1.83 millions in 2016-17 and is expected to grow at
a CAGR of nearly 18% till 2021. However, Airport remain closed for 20 days (12 May-31 May 2018) and
also there were restriction on operational watch hours at the Airport (i.e. for 13 hours till 2019 owing to
civil work carried out by Indian Air Force) which has affected the passenger flow. The total Passenger
throughput and Aircraft Traffic Movements have decreased by 1.87% and 9.15% respectively as
compared to previous year. Despite of decrease in passenger flow, profitability has increased by 33.15%
as compared to previous year (i.e. 2017-18)

During the year 2018-19, Company has achieved commendable growth in all key performance
parameters. The total revenue for the year ended 31.03.2019 was Rs. 114.60 Crores which recorded an
impressive growth of 18.97% over the previous financial year. The Company has reported a profit after
tax of Rs. 18.72 Crores for the current year as compared to the profit after tax of Rs. 14.06 Crores
reported during the last financial year.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES, INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT,
INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

Human capital has continued to be the key engine for our growth and aspirations. CHIAL has taken
several initiatives to focus on creating a positive work environment that provides employees with
ample growth and development opportunities as well as ensuring high levels of motivation and
engagement. Measures for safety of employee, welfare, training, performance based appraisal system,
compensation, career growth continued to remain key priority of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGICAL CONSERVATION,
RENEWABLE ENERGY DEVELOPMENTS, FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONSERVATION

The steps taken orimpacton conservation of energy are as under:

* Around 35% to 40 % ofall the electrical fixtures are of LED instated during project time.

* 400 Watts 375 Nos. HPSV Roof fitting replaced with 200 Watt LED and 250/150 Watt MH Light
replaced with 80 watt LED.

+ AllElectrical Motors are of EFF-1 Class i.e mostenergy efficient motors.

* Motorsare fitted with VFD (Variable Frequency Drives) controls.

» HVACCChillersare of COP 6.3.

+ 1800 KVAR capacitor bank has been installed to take care of power factor.

* AllAHUs, Cooling Towers are fitted with Variable Frequency Drives. (2HD)

+ Conventional FIDS monitors have been replaced with Energy efficient LED monitors.

+ Conversion of balance conventional type light fixtures to energy efficient LED type light fixture is in
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The efforts made towards technology absorption are as under:

» Technology of LED Lampsinreplacementof FTL, CFL lamps.

« Technology LED lightin replacement of HPSV and MH Light.

« Technology of Variable Frequency Drive for Electrical motors.
« Highest Energy Efficiency motors.

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo details during the year is as under:

Foreign exchange Earnings | NIL

Foreign exchange Outgo Rs. 733.32 Lakhs (USD 10,39,765.12)

CORPORATESOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (hereinafter referred as
“the CSR Committee") as per the provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Our mission is to
be a committed Corporate Citizen alive towards Social Responsibility with a view to make a positive
difference to society. CSR Policy intends to:

+ Strive for economic development that positively impacts the society at large with a minimal resource

footprint.
+ Embrace responsibility for the Company’s actions and encourage a positive impact through its

activities on hunger, poverty, malnutrition, environment, communities, stakeholders and the
society.

The CSR projects will be implemented under the guidance of the Board's Sub-Committee on CSR which
presently comprises three directors. The terms of reference of the Committee is given below:

a) Torecommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in the CSR
policy.
b) To monitor the implementation of Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from

time to time.
¢) The CSR Committee shall arrange to provide all required inputs to undertake CSR activities and

shall review all Social initiatives.
d) TheCSRcommittee shallupdate the Board of Directors on periodically basis.

The applicability for spending arise in case of average net profits in last three years whereas CHIAL has
not earned average net profits during the last three financial years. The implementation and
monitoring of Company CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the company.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statement contained in the Annual Report may constitute forward-looking statement within
the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. These statements are based on management’s views
and assumptions at the time information was prepared and involve known and unknown risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results or performance to differ materially from those expressed
or implied in such statements made in the Annual Report. The Company expressly disclaims any
obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward looking
statements contained herein to reflect any change in the Company’s expectations with regard thereto
orany change in events, conditions or circumstances or which any such statements are based.

: ®
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RAJIV GOEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

SCO 823-824, 1st FLOOR, Sector 22-A, Chandigarh
TELEPHONE NO.0172-4644607

Email: raaca%1@amail.com
UDIN - 1908966 9ARAAC.T8S YD

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF CHANDIGARH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
Revised Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

Our Report dated 05.08.2019 on the accounts for the financial year 2018-19 has been revised to give
effect to the observations made by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India in the supplementary
audit carried out by them under section 143(6) (a) of the Companies Act 2013.

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of CHANDIGARH
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED (‘the Company’) which comprise the Balance Sheet as
atMarch 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),the
statement of Cash Flow, notes to the financial statements and Statement of changes in Equity for the
year ended 31 March, 2019, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (together hereinafter referred to as “Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities Jor the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statemenis section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
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Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
3
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the financial statements may be influenced, We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. We enclose our report in terms of Section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks of the books
and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us, in the “Annexure B” on the directions and sub directions issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

3. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(a) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books:

(b) The Company does not have any branch office. Hence, the report on the accounts of any branch
office of the company is not applicable;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the

Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian

Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued
thereunder;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors, taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
*Annexure C” and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
Il of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us: “ C‘{GU/
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i The Company is having two pending litigations as detailed below: -

(1) CWP No. 18628 of 2015 (The Federation of Indian Airlines (FIA) Versus Union of India

and Others)

CHIAL awarded entire Ground Handling Contract to M/s Air India Air Transport Services
Limited (AIATSL) as per the Airport Authority of India (AAI)(General Management Entry
for Ground Handling Services) Regulations, 2007. The same is challenged by FIA and is
pending before the High Court of Punjab & Haryana. The High Court allowed the Writ
Petition in favour of the petitioners i.e. FIA vide order dated 24.09.2015 and ordered that
Ground Handling functions shall be performed by the bonafide whole time employees of the
airlines and the other ground handling agencies specifically permitted in writing by the AAl
to undertake Ground Handling activities through their bonafide whole time employee. The
High Court further ordered “Status Quo® on the order dated 24.09.2015 vide its order dated
20.10.2015. There is no financial implication on the company due this litigation.

(2) CWPNo. 27436 of 2015 (Mohali Industries Association Versus Union of India and Others)
A CWP was filed by the Mohali Industries Association in the High Court of Punjab &
Haryana, to ensure the operation of the International flights at the Chandigarh International
Airport since in their view the non-operation of the same is causing huge loss to the public
exchequer and also to passenger services and business and/or industries situated in Punjab,
Haryana and Himachal Pradesh. The litigation is pending in the court: however, there is no
financial implication on the company.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Rajiv Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.011106N)

mw&ﬂf’/

CA Rajiv Goel
Place: Chandigarh Partner

Date: Q2. 08, 8c 19 (Membership No. 089669)
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“Annexure A" to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors Report to the members of the Company on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, we report that;

i) In respect of the Company’s Fixed Assets: -

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets (except in few cases);

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner, designed
to cover all the items over a period of time, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the programme, fixed asset has been
physically verified by the management during the year and no material disc repancies between the
books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

il)The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable and no discrepancy has been found as such. Inventory consists
of stores and consumables generally consumed within a financial year.

iif) The Company has not granted any loans. secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause iii (a) to (¢) of the Order are not applicable.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
granted any loan or made any investment as defined under the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are
not applicable,

vi)We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by Central Government for maintenance of Cost Records under Section 148 (1) of the Act
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the records.

vii) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Goods and Service
tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax. Cess and any other material statutory dues
have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not have any undisputed
amounts payable in respect of the above and there were no arrears as at March 31, 2019 fora period of
more than six months from the date on when they become pavable.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, goods
and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax which have not been deposited with
the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. « - ud.(,
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viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowing from any financial institution, banks,
government or debenture holders during the year, Accordingly, paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order is not
applicable.

ix) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company did not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

x) According to information and explanations given to us by the management, we report that no fraud

by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during
the year.

xi) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act are not
applicable to the Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xi) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable.

xiii) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on an overall examination of
the Balance Sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence reporting requirements
under clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and not commented upon.

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable.

For Rajiv Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.011106N)

ple @

CA Rajiv Goel
Place: Chandigarh Partner
Date: 3.0%.3.\4 (Membership No. 089669)
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors® Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory

Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2019:

Whether the company has system in place to process all
the accounting transactions through IT system? If yes, the
implications of processing of accounting transactions
outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along

Yes, the company has IT system
to process the accounting
transactions. As there are no
accounting transactions outside

with the financial implications, if any, may be stated. IT system of the company,

therefore no financial
implications on the integrity of
the accounts.

2 Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or | NIL during the year

cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made
by a lender to the company due to the company’s inability
to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be
stated.

3 Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes | Yes, funds received from
from Central/State agencies were properly accounted Ministry of Commerce &
for/utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases | Industries  under  scheme
of deviation. namely Trade Infrastructure for
Export Scheme (TIES) are
properly accounted for,

For Rajiv Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.011106N)

i

CA Rajiv Goel
Partner
(Membership No. 089669)

Place: Chandigarh
Date: 92.08.J 19
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“Annexure C” to the Independent Auditor’s

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Chandigarh International
Airport Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
[nternal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the
Company,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,2019,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Rajiv Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.011106N)

LS

)]

CA Rajiv Goel
Place: Chandigarh Partner

Date: J3.08.3¢18 (Membership No. 089669)
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RAJIV GOEL &
ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

SCO 823-824, 1st FLOOR, Sector 22-A, Chandigarh
TELEPHONE NO.0172-4644607,
Email: rgacagi mail.com

MPLIAN

We have conducted the audit of accounts of Chandigarh International Airport Limited
for the year ended 31.03.2019 in accordance with the directions/sub-directions issued
by the C & AG of India under Section 143 (5)& (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and certify
that we have complied with all the directions/sub-directions issued to us.

For Rajiv Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.011106N)

Mw W/

CA Rajiv Goel
Place: Chandigarh Partner
Date; Q3.08. 3219 (Membership No. 089669)
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“f Chandigarh International Airport Limited
J Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

Non-current assets

For Rajiv o -_ &
Chartered Ay

M No. 089669
FRN 011106N
Place : Chandigarh

Date : 05-08-201q

W_@ﬂ'ﬂ)u.‘
(CA Rajiv Goel) (Avneet Kaur)
Partner Company Secretary

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 84,202.26 86,686.85
{b) Capital work-in-progress 3 911.95 88.01
(c) Deferred Tax Assets 16 810.13 1,005.61
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 4 6.24 6.12
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 5 676,03 1,372.37
(ii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 6 12,142.75 7,172.42
(iif) Others 7 1,120.11 665.57
(c) Current Tax Assets 8 1,172.95 716.04
(d) Other Current Assers 9 124.57 33.70
Total Assets 1,01,167.58 97,746.70
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(a) Equity Share Capital 10 96,944.94 96,944.94
(b) Other Equity 11 576.45 (1,303.24)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 12 70.32 -
(i) Others 13 456.67 394.18
(b) Other non-current liabilites 14 239.38 107.06
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Others 15 2,486.72 1,517.41
(b) Other current liabilities 17 393.10 86.35
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,01,167.58 97,746.70
Significant Accounting Policies 1

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

For and on behalf of the Boatd of Directors

(Rakesh Dembla)
CFO

Chairman

UDIN — 190 89669 AARACTEOR YD
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited B
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019
L= U
Income .
) Revenue from Operations 18 10,717.94 9,235.12
i) Other Income 19 742,20 398.09 .
Total Income 11,460.14 9,633.21
Expenses .
i) Employee Benefits Expenses 20 488.71 521.73
if) Operating Expenses 21 1,682.87 1,331.01 .
i) Administrative & Other Expenses 22 431.28 312.19
iv) Security Expenses 23 2,774.13 2,048.90 o
v) Depreciation expenses 24 3,383.35 3,264.42
vi) Other Expenses 25 80.54 68.57 .
Total expenses 8,840.89 7,546.81
Profit before exceptional items and tax 2,6192.25 2,086.40 .
Exceptional Items - -
Profit Before Tax 2,619.25 2,086.40 .
Tax expense 16
- Current Tax 551.04 432.02
- Less: MAT Credit (551.04) (432.02) .
- Deferred Tax 746.52 679.92
‘Tortal Tax Expenses 746.52 679.92 .
Profit for the period from continuing operations 1,872.73 1,406.48
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - - -
Tax expense of discontinued operations -
Profit from discontinued operations after tax > & .
I Profit for the year 1,872.73 1,406.48
II Other Comprehensive Income .
1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss .
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans &
Less: [ncome Tax on above - -
|
4) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss . .
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 1,872.73 1,406.48
Earnings per equity share : .
(1) Basic 0.19 0.15
(2) Diluted 0.19 01 J
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements -
For Rajiv Goel & Associates .
Chartered A‘b . For and on behalf of Board of Directors
—_— <l
(CA Rajiv (Avneet Kaur) (’Rak:sh Dembla) -
Partner Company Secretary CFO
M No. 089669 -
FRN 011106N
Place : Chandigarh ]
Date : 05-02-2c\9 .
=
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Statement of Changes In Equity for the period ended March 31, 2019

A. Equity Share Capital

e )
Balance as at Aprl 1, 2018
Changes in share capital during the year -

Balance as ar March 31, 2019 96,944.94
in lakhs
Balance as at April 1, 2017 - 9.6,944-.94
Changes in share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 96,944.94
- Other Equity

For the year ended March 31, 2019

Particular:

Annual Report 2018-2019

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period as on
April 01, 2018
Profit for the year 1,872.73 1.872.73
Other Comprehensive Income -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 569.49 569.49
Add: Transfer to reserve dusing the period 6.96 6.96
Less: Appropriations -
Dividends - =
General reserve - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period March 31, 2019 576.45 576.45
(INR in lakhs)
Total
Balance at the beginning of the repo (2,709.72) (2,709.72)
April 01, 2017
Profit for the year 1,406.48 1,406.48
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (1,303.24) (1,303.24)
Add: Transfer to reserve during the period - =
Less: Appropriations 4
Dividends = _
General reserve - =
Balance at the end of the reporting period March 31, 2018 (1,303.29) (1,303.24)
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Cash Fiow Statement For The Year Ended Mazch 31, 2019

b F Tl Semia s a e oo - ——— -

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/Loss before mx 2,619.25 2,086.40
| Adjustment for:-

Depreciation 3138335 3,264.42
Interest Income (652.18) (327.28)
Fair Valuaton Gain (72.55) (68.57)
Finance Cost 7255 68.57
Finance lease adjustment 6.96 -
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 5,357.38 5,023.54
Adjustment for working capital changes:-

Inventories (0.12) 8.4
Trade Receivables 695.74 (949.66)

| Other Current Financial Assers (454.53) (273.15)
| (Other Current Assets {90.86) 39.30

Current Tax Asset (456.90) (278.03)
MAT Credit (551.04) (432.02)
Other Current Financial Liabilities 969.31 678.82
Other Current Liabilities 25.75 70.04
Other Adjustments :-

Other Non-Current Financial Liability 13281 (216.12)
Other Non-Current Liabilities 132.32 (29.68)
Cash generated from Operating Activities 5,759.85 3,641.47
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activites 5,759.85 3,641.47
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed Assets (898.76) (887.61)
Capital Work In Progress & (823.95) 347.56
Intecest Income 652.18 327.28
Net Cash From Investing Activities (1,070.53) @R.77)
Grants received durng the year 281.00 -
Net Cash From Financing Activities 28100 -
D. Net changes in Cash & Cash equivalents 4,970.33 3,428.71
E. Opening Cash & Gash Equivalents (Note No 13) 717242 374372
F. Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents (Note No 13) 12,142.75 7,172.42

quilavent

Component of Cash and Cash E
e =

Particu

- For the year ended March 31,

£ = I e R R e R e N m

Flexi - Deposits - 190.68

Balances with Banks 453.96 30.87

Fixed - Term Deposit 11,688.79 6,950.87
12,142.75 7,172.42

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

For Rajiv Goel:& A

O

AL
ixﬁ:mm."fﬁ:"

(CA Rajiv Goel) (Rakesh Dembla)
Partner Company Secretary CFO

M No. 089669

FRN 011106N

Place : Chandigach
Date : pF-08 -204

For and on behalf of the Board of Direct

UDIN— [Q0896€9ARAACTA 3Yp
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CHANDIGARH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Chandigarh International Airport Ltd. (CHIAL), has been incorporated on 28t% January, 2010 as
a joint venture company under Companies Act, 1956 by Airports Authority of India (AAI) in
association with Punjab Government through Greater Mohali Area Development Authority
(GMADA) and Haryana Government through Haryana Urban Development Authority (HUDA) to
operate and maintain Chandigarh International Airport which has come up with a new state of art
International Airport at Mohali, Punjab. As per the Joint Venture Agreement, the equity
contribution is in the ratio of 51.00%, 24.50% and 24.50% respectively by AAIL, GMADA and HUDA.
AAI's contribution towards its share of equity is construction of the New Terminal Building and
allied works. GMADA and HUDA have provided land for the said construction towards their equity
contribution. CHIAL, has commenced commercial operations on 19% October, 2015.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 on 16 February 2015 laying down the roadmap for implementation of Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) to Indian Companies other than banking companies, insurance
companies and non-banking financial companies (NBFCs). As per the roadmap, Ind AS is applicable
to Chandigarh International Airport Limited from the financial year commencing on or after April 1,
2017. However, CHIAL adopted Ind AS in financial year 2015-16 voluntarily.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting under historical cost
convention, except for following financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair
value:

Non-current financial assets such as security deposits are measured at fair value at initial
recognition.

Non- current financial liabilities such as security deposits from customers and lease rentals are
measured at fair value at initial recognition.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue
and expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. Actual results may differ from those estimates and assumptions, due to changes in facts
and circumstances. Management reviews estimates on an ongoing basis using currently available
information and any revision in the estimate is recognized in the period in which the same is
determined.

The financial statements are rounded off in lakhs. The financial statements comply with all
applicable IND AS.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment up to March 31, 2015 were carried in the balance sheet in
accordance with Indian GAAP. The company has elected to avail the exemption granted by IND AS
101, "First time adoption of IND AS" to regard those amounts as deemed cost at the date of the
transition to IND AS (i.e. as on April 1, 2015).
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PPE are stated at their original cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. The cost includes
cost of subsequent improvements thereto including taxes, duties, freight and other incidental
expenses related to acquisition and installation of the assets concerned. Advances paid towards
acquisition of assets, outstanding at each balance sheet date are shown under capital advances. The
cost of fixed assets not ready for its intended use on such date is disclosed as Capital work-in-
Progress.

Spares parts, stand-by equipments and servicing equipments procured along with the Plant &
Machinery or subsequently which meets the recognition criteria, are capitalized and added in the
carrying amount of such item. The carrying amount of those spare parts that are replaced is
derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or upon disposal.
Other machinery spares are treated as “stores & spares” forming part of the inventory.

If the cost of the replaced part or earlier inspection is not available, the estimated cost of similar
new paris/inspection is used as an indication of what the cost of the existing part/ inspection
component was when the item was acquired or inspection carried out.

Depreciation is provided on a Straight Line Method ('SLM") over the useful lives of the assets as per
Companies Act 2013 /management’s estimates. Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a
period is proportionately charged. Pursuant to this policy, the rates of depreciation determined by
the Management are as set out below:

Assets Rates of Dep.
Land 0%

Aprons 19%

Roads, Bridges & Culverts (Carpeted) 19%

Roads, Bridges & Culverts (Non-Carpeted) 31.67%
Building Terminal/Other Buildings 3.17%
Buildings - Temporary 31.67%
Boundary Wall 3.17%
Computers & L.T. Hardware & Access 31.67%
Computers & L.T. - Servers 15.83%

Plant and Machinery/X-Ray Baggage System 6.33%

Tools & Equipments / Office Appliances 19%
Furniture and Fixtures Office / Other Than Office 9.50%
Vehicles - Cars & Jeeps/Motor Cycles 11.88%/9.50%
Electrical Installations 9.50%

The assets having a cost of Rs. 5000 or less are charged off to expenditure in the year of payment.
Residual value of an asset is taken 5% of the original cost of the asset.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year end.

Intangible Assets and Depreciation

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are recognized only if it is probable that future
economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise. Computer software
licenses are capitalized on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and put to use the specific
software. Operating software is capitalized and amortized along with the related fixed asset. Other
software is amortized, on a straight line method, over a period of three years.
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Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are
recognized as an intangible asset when the company can demonstrate:

The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use
or sale

Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

How the asset will generate future economic benefits

The availability of resources to complete the asset

The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost
less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset
begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use, It is amortized over the
period of expected future benefit. Amortization expense is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Normally at initial
recognition, the transaction price is the best evidence of fair value.

However, when the Company determines that transaction price does not represent the fair value, it
uses inter-alia valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. This categorisation is based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

« Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

+ Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable.

Financial assets and financial liabilities that are recognised at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

A financial asset includes inter-alia any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity or
contractual obligation to receive cash or another financial assets or to exchange financial asset or
financial liability under condition that are potentially favourable to the Company. A financial asset
is recognized when and only when the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets of the Company comprise cash and cash equivalents, Bank Balances, Advances to
employees/ contractors, security deposit, claims recoverable etc,
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Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
i. atamortized cost,

ii. at fair value through other comprehensive income (0CI), and

iii, at fair value through profit or loss

The classification depends on the following:
(a) The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
(b) The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets except trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and in the case
of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in Statement of Profit or Loss. Where
transaction price is not the measure of fair value and fair value is determined using a valuation
method that uses data from observable market, the difference between transaction price and
fair value is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss and in other cases spread over life of the
financial instrument using effective interest rate method.

The company measures the trade receivables at their transaction price, if the trade receivables
do not contain a significant financing component.

Subsequent measurement

After initial measurement, financial assets classified at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value changes are recognized in 0Cl. However, the company recognizes interest
income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the income
statement. On de-recognition of the financial asset other than equity instruments, cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified to income statements,

Any financial asset that does not meet the criteria for classification as at amortized cost or as
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, is classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
fair valued at each reporting date with all the changes recognized in the income statement.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:
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e  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

¢ The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
abligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

e. Impairment of financial assets

The company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the
financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade
receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL, For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to
the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit
losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the

amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss.

Stores / Spares

Stores/spares other than recognized as property, plant &Equipments are treated as inventory,
which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when they are consumed.

The costs of purchase consist of the purchase price including duties and taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from the taxing authorities), freight inwards and other
expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition. Trade discounts, rebates, duty drawbacks and
other similar items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase.

The balance of inventory at the end of year, if any, is valued on First in First out basis.
Revenue recognition

Effective from April 1, 2018, CHIAL has applied Ind-AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised. It has
adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified approach.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of
promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria is met:

1. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company’s performance as the company performs; or

2. The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced; or

3. The Company's performénce does not create an asset with an alternative use to the

Company and an entity has an enforceable right to payvment for performance completed to
date.
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For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised
at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

The company uses Input/Output Method to measure an entity’s progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation satisfied over time,

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is updated at each reporting period. It is
the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price
concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also
excludes taxes collected from customers.

Aeronautical Revenue includes revenue from all regulated charges levied at CHIAL i.e. Parking
Charges, Passenger Service Fee (Facilitation), User Development Fee, Fuel Throughput Charges and
Cargo (X-Bis Screening Charges) are being recognized at the rates prescribed by Airport Economic
Regulatory Authority (AERA) & CUTE, Extension of Watch Hours and Baggage reconciliation system
fee are recognized at the existing rates being charged by AAL Parking charges are recognised, when
such services are provided. Passenger Service Fee (Security) is recognized as per rate fixed by
MoCA. User Development Fees and Passenger Service fees -Facilitation and Security component are
recognised in respect of each embarking passenger at a specified rate.

Non-Aeronautical Revenue means all revenue streams other than Aeronautical Revenue, The same
consists of (i) revenue from concessions (ii) rents and land leases; (iii) food and beverage
concessions; (iv) utility charges; and (v) other non-aviation related charges are recognized based
on the terms of contractual agreement.

Interest is recognised using the time proportion method based on rates implicit in the transaction.
Award fees and tender fees are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance withthe terms of the
relevant arrangement.

Retirement and other Employee Benefits

The employees on the roll of the company are on deputation from Airports Authority of India (AAI).
The statutory deductions towards retirement benefits in respect of these employees are remitted to
AAL

The cost of deployment of other staff on loan from AAI has been booked based on Eross amount
reimbursable to AAI in respect of those employees. The liability for retirement and other employee
benefits are booked in AAI books for these employees.

Leases

Lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership and an operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

Whether a lease is a finance lease or an operating lease depends on the substance of the transaction
rather than the form of the contract. Examples of situations that individually or in combination
would normally lead to a lease being classified as a finance lease are:

(a) The lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term:

(b) The lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price that is expected to be sufficiently lower

than the fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable for it to be reasonably certain, at the
inception of the lease, that the option will be exercised;
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(¢) The lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the asset even if title is not transferred;

(d) At the inception of the lease the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts to at least
substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset; and

() The leased assets are of such a specialised nature that only the lessee can use them without major
modifications

As a lessee

¢ Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s inception date at lower of fair value of the leased
property or at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as
appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost
is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

¢ Operating lease payments are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

As alessor

¢ Lease income from operating leases is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term of relevant lease.

10. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
thatare enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in

which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in

the company's financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit and are accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
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initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that at the time of the transaction affects
neither the taxable profit or loss nor the accounting profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and when the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Earnings per share

The basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/loss after tax,
attributable to equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/loss before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

Current versus non-current classification

The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
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Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance coniract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties,
etc. are recognised when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be
estimated reliably.

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, If such recoverable amount
of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at the
balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer
exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying amount of asset does not exceed
the net book value that would have been determined; if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Investments

Long-term investments are carried at cost less provision for diminution, other than temporary
diminution in the value of the investments.

Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value, The comparison of cost and fair
value is carried out separately in respect of each investment.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies that
require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgements and the use of
assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in Note 17.1 Accounting estimates
could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate
changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the
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period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

17.1 Critical accounting estimates

The following are the critical judgements that the Company has made in the process of applying
the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statement. The following are the estimates used during the year.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment represent a significant
proportion of asset base of the company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived
after determining the estimate of an assets expected useful life and the expected residual value at
the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of company’s assets are determined by
Schedule Il of Companies Act 2013.

Provisions: Provisions are determined based on management estimate required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date.

Contingent liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of
management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are

adjusted to reflect the current management estimate,

Contingent Assets: Contingent assets are disclosed on the basis of judgment of
management/independent experts.

For Rajiv Goel & Associates . For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

M@&% @w‘:’/

(CA Rajiv Goel (Avneet Kaur) (Rakesh Dembla)
Partner Company Secretary CFO
Membership No. 089669

FRN 011106N

Place: Chandigarh
Date: o5-eR -20\Q
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
3 Capital Work- In- Progress —in lalfhs
T ety 54-
Civil & Other Works* 88.01 1,487.63 663.69 911.95
Total 88.01 1,487.63 663.69 91195

'tal Work- In- Progre

Civil & Other Works##
Computer & Software 1.64 -
Total 435.57 384.74 732.30 88.01

*Civil & Other Works as on 31.03.2019 pertains to followings:

1. SITC of HT cables, Split AC, water cooler, dewatering pump and other electrical items Rs. 24.27 lakhs.

2. Supply Installation Testing And Commissioning of 0 2 Nos of In Line Baggage Screening Systems Rs.675.18 lakhs,
3. Provision of Escalator near lift 7 at CHTAL Rs. 11.08 lakhs.

4. Construction of Apron For 5 Nos Code 4C Type of Aircraft Rs. 99.65 lakhs,

5. Supply Installation Testing And Commissioning of 2 Nos 4 Mtr Escalators Rs. 43.63 lakhs.

6. Door Frame Metal Detectors (DFMD) (USD 26,004.60 @ Rs.70.14) Rs. 18.24 lakhs,

7. Explosive Trace Detectors(ETDs) USD 57,414.00 @ Rs.69.51) Rs.39.91 lakhs

**Civil & Other Works as on 31.03.2018 pertains to followings:

L. Expenditure for leveling of taxi track of Rs 52.09 lakhs,

2. Expenditure for additional signages of Rs. 17.50 lakhs.

3. Geotechnical investigation for construction of apron amounting to Rs. 2.16 lakhs

4. Expenditure incurred for construction of apron amounting to Rs. 2.49 lakhs.

5. Expenditure incurred for SITC 32 NO HD cameras for baggage tag dispensing amounting to Rs.11.58 lakhs.

6. Expenditure incurred for supply and fixing of HT/LT insulating mats in switch rooms amounting to Rs.2.19 lakhs.




Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Physical verification of the stores have been carded out by the independent auditor as on 31.03.2019 and no diserepancy have been reporred.

Tde Rgnhlu _

137237

Total

676.63 |

137237

In the opinion of the company, trade receivable as stared in the accounts will be realized in the ordinary cousse of business.

Bahinces with Banks 453.96 30.87
Sub-Total (A) 453.96 221.54
Bank balances other than above
Fixed Deposit and Embarked Balances 11,688.79 6,950.87
{More than 3 months but less than 12 months)
Snb-_"l_'.'ou] (B) 11,688,79 6,950.87
Toral 12,142.75 7,172.42

Lien on FD of Rs 68.17 lakhs has been created against the supply of Explosive Trace Detector amounting to Rs.66.17 lakhs and Door Frame Mezal

Detectors amounting to Rs.2 lakhs.

Other Ct Financial Assets

Recoverable from Parhies
Other Advances Govt.

30244 -
Security Deposits Receivable 24.43 0.97
| Total 1,120.11 665.57

ent Tax Auels

Tax Ddat S l (Net of Pmmm l: Tax) -

120.52 120.52
Tax Deducted ar Sotirce AY 2017-18 (Net of Provision for Income Tax) 317.50 317.50
Tax Deducted at Source AY 2018-19 (Net of Provision for Income Tax) 27803 278.03
Tax Deducted ar Source AY 2019-20 (Net of Provisien for Income Tax) 436,90 -
Total 1,172.95 716.04
Income tax assessments upto AY 2016-17 have been completed and tefund ordér for the same has been issued by coneerned department.
Other Current Assets NR in lakhs
I = T B,
214 183
Prepaid Expenses 22.43 29.85
Advances to Suppliers 100.00 -
Total 124.57 33,70
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

J

Share Capital

Authorized

1,20,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,20,000.00 1,20.000.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid

0,69,44,94,050 equity shares of Rs. 10/- sach 96,944.94 96,944.94
Total 96,944.94 96,944.94

Opening Equity Shares
Add; -No. of Shares, Share Capital issued/ subscrbed durng the year

(Opening Equity Shares
Add: -No. of Shares, Share Capital issued/ subscribed dunng the year

Closing balance

Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shases in the Company

Aicports Authosity of India (AAI)
Greater Mohali Area Development Authority (GMADA)
|Haryana Utban Development Authority (HUDA)

4944.19

2375.15

2,375.15

Cperiiig alfaice (1,503.24) (2,700.72)
Finance lease Adjustment 6.96

Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss 1,872.73 1.406.48
Toral 576.45) (1,303.24)

Total

Non-Current Financial Liabilities

Particular

il Mo Ginveis MREERE L

Deferred Fair Valuation Gain - Security Deposits

Total

IIJ.II.III.IIIIIIIIIIHIIIIIIII
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

Other Current Financial Liabilities

Secunity Dieposits 1,190.69 848.28

Alirports Authodty of India 109.47 10.33

Liability of Pay & Allowances 8.70 1.76

Expenses Payable 1,162.81 656.84

Current matudties of finance lease obligations 14.85

Others 0.19 -
Total 2.486.72 1,517.41

“Ihis includes Eamest money deposits amounting to Rs. 8.45 lakhs s at 31* march 2019 respectively which are payable on demand

Tax Expense

Current income tax

Current year 551.04 43202
Less: MAT Credit (551.04) (432.02)
Sub Total (A) - -
Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of remporary differences (746.52) 679.92
Sub Total (B) (746.52) 679.92
Total (A+B) (746.52) 679.92

Reconciliation of effective tax rates

E =
Profit before tax

2,619.25

Enacted rax Rate 29.12% 28.84%
Computed Expected Tax Expenses 762,73 601,72
Tax Effect of :

MAT Credit (551.04) (432.02)
Others (Inchude Transition Reserve) (13.38) (17.90)
FEffect of change in fax_rate® (198.31) {151.79)
Current Tax Provision (A) (0.00) 0.00
recognised =
Deferred tax for the remparory differences (146.52) 673.38
Effect of change in mx_rarc* - 6.34
Dejferred Tax Provision (B) (746.52) §79.92
Tax s recognised in profit and loss (A+B) | (746.52) 679.92

* Inctudes NLAT rate and enacted tax rate for current year
# Includes MAT rate and enacted tase rate snd, Educatton cess of 1% bigher used in deferred twe

comipertation i previows year

forred s

Recognised deferred 1ax assers and liabilities
ilities ace ateri

able £ the following

-ﬁ-ll---llul-n--lll-ln-u

Deferred Tax Liability

Property, plant and equi t (1,391.53) {1,196.57)
Sub Total (1,391.53) (1,196.57)
Deferred tax Assets

Unabsorbed Depreciztion & broughs forward losses 1,190.04 1,713.04
Unamornzed preopemnve & prelimimary Exp. 28.56 5712
Sub Toal 1.218.60 1,770.16
MAT Credit Entitlement

MAT Ceedit 983.06 43202
[Sub Total 983.06 432.02
Net Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liability) 810.13 1,005.61

A
3 2\
2 =
-
4% LA l‘,‘t‘é‘




Froperty, pz qu
Unabserbed Depreciation & brought forward losses as

(1,196.57)

(194.96)

1,391.53)

|

1,713.04 (523.00) 1,190.04
5712 (28.36) 2856
573.59 (74652) (172.93)

Movement in deferred tax balances during the year 2018 INR in lakhs)
Propery, plant and equipment (897.96) (298.61) (1,196.57)

Unabsorbed Depreciation & brought forward losses 1s

per Income Tax 2,060.56 (347.52) 1,713.04
Unamortized preopenative & preliminary expenses 90.91 [33.80) 57.12
Toral .51 (679.92) 573.59

Other Liabilitics

Duties &

89.12

Deferred Fair Valuation Gain - Secudty Deposits 12.83 276

Deferred Revenue- Government Grant 281.00 -

Other labilities 10.16 0.56
Toral 393.11 86.35

Duties & Taxes includes statutory liabilities of Rs. 27.68 lakhs on account of TDS and Rs. 87.44 lakhs on account of GST,
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Chandigarh International Airpott Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

[
I. Aeronautical Revenue
Packing & Housing 4.24 495
Passenger Service Fee {Fadlimtion) - 175.05
User Development Fees 5.949.40 454116
Extension of Service hours 5.88 18.18
Ground Handling Services 86.72 8354
Throughput Charges 88.52 81.46
Baggage Reconciliation System Charges 13.50 440
Common User Terminal Equipment Chacges 177.81 18213
Cargo Revenue 49.11 5493
Total 6,375.17 5,145.86
Passenger Service Fee (Security) 1,323.35 1,355.64
11, Non-aeronautical Revenue
Admission Fees/Commercial Passes 10.36 1655
Car Pasking 469.09 45138
Rent & Services 1,161.24 1,171.50
Trading Concession 1,378.73 1,094.19
Tartal 3,019.42 2,733.62
Total 10,717.94 9,235.12
Interest on Term Deposits
Fair Valuation Gain 7255 68.57
Miscellaneous Income* 17.47 225
Total 742.20 398.09

*This includes withheld amount of Rs. 4.84 lakhs which were not chimed by partics, the same has been transferred to Misc Income

Contabution to Pravident Fund and other funds 5.99 572
Orther Staff Cost 0.50 079
Cost of Staff Deployment of AAI 408.04 438.81
Total 488.71 521.73

21 (INR in lakhs)

d March 31, 2018

.._ % .

Repair & Maintenance

- Crvil 144.24
- Electrical 20521 246.85
- Equipment & Furniture 80.43 61.27
- Electronics & IT Infrastructuse 3.64 1.70
Housekeeping & Cleaning Works 388.36 221.97
Advertsement & Publicity 13.63 2426
Consumption of Stores & Spares 88.33 79.01
Electricity 8 Water Charges 592.42 537.72
Lease Rental = 6.96
Rent, Rates & Taxes 7.02 7.05

Total 1,682.87

EndesnEEsuEEEEERNEENEERRENRNEEEnHee
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.
Postage, Telegram, Telex
Printing & Stationery
Telephone Charges
Travelling Expenses
Consultancy Charges
Insusance Expense
Payment to Auditors
- Audit Fee - Starutory Audit 1.00 1.00
- Audit Fee - Other Audit 3.68 280
Training & Seminar Expenses 6.00 1.76
Facilimtion Expenses 7251 4045
Hire Charges - Others 178.91 97.06
Board Meeting Expenses 2.54 07
Collection Chasges on PSF/UDF 57.18 56.95
Other Fees 035 012
Miscellaneous Office Expenses 5.29 2.80
Subscription (Professional bodies) 1530 20,44
| Foreign Currency Fluctuation 0.78 -
Toml 431.28 312.19

Pay & Allowances and Othee Saaff Cost

1,959.70

Vehicle Running & Hire Charges 3398

Other Miscellaneous Expenses 55.22

Total 2,774.13 2,048.90

24 Depreciation (INR in lakhs)
= — — e e

" 3,383.3 T 306442

Total 3,383.35 3,264.42

Interest due to fair valuation

-Securty Deposit T72.55 68.57
-Lease 8.00 .
Total 80.54 68.57

J
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statement

26 Disclosures in respect of Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments

26.1 Financial Instruments by Categories

The carrying value and faic value of financial instruments by categories were as follows:

Financial Assets;

Cash & Cash Equivalents 12,142.75 12,142.75 12,142.75
Trade Receivable 676.63 - 676.63 676.63
Orther Financial Assets 1,120.11 - 1,120.11 1,120.11
[Toal Financial Assews 13,939.49 5 13,939.49 13,939.49
Financial Liabilities:

Borrowings 85.17 B85.17 85.17
Security Deposits 1,647.36 - 1,647.36 1,647.30
Other Finanecial Liabilides 1,281.18 1,281.18 1,281.18
Total Financial Liabilitics 3,013.71 - 3,013.71 3,013.71

Cash & Cash Equivalents 117242 = 717242 717242

Trade Receivable 1,372.37 1,372.57 1372.37
Other Financial Assets 663.57 465.57) G03.57
Toral Financial Assets 9,210.36 - 9,210.36 9,210.36
Financial Liabilides:

|Security Deposits 1,24246 1,242,446 1,242.46
Other Financial Liabilitics 669,13 669.13 609.13
|Total Finaneial Liabilities 1,911.59| L911.59 1,911.59

26.2 Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets,

® Level 2 - Level 2 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using inputs othee than quated prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the

asset or hability, either directly (Le. as prices) or indirectly (ie. deaved from prices).
Level 3 - Level 3 hierarchy includes finaneial instruments measured using inputs that are not based on observable marker dars (unobsesvable inpurs).

The following table present fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilites measured at fair value -

As at March 31, 2019
Financial Liabilides:
1,647.36 1,647.36 | Valued at MCLR rate 8.35%
Secunity Depasits of 5Bl as on
01/04/2019
As at March 31, 2018
Financial Liabilities:
124246 1,242.46 | Valued ar MCLR rare B.00%
Security Depaosits of SBI as on
01/04/2018
1,242.46 1,242.46

We have transfer the security from level 3 to level 2 of fair value hierarchy during the F.Y. 201819 and as such there is no financial impact on the balance

sheet of the company.

annsnsoEsuEeNENEEENNERNEWNRNNENRN
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Notes forming part of the Anancial statement

26.3 Financial risk management

Finanecial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variery of financial asks: masket dsk, credit sisk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary focus is o foresec the
unpredictability of financil marckers and seek to minimize potential adverse sffects on irs finaneial performance.

4) Marker Risk
The company does not have any macket dsk.

b) Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the rsk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in 2 financial loss. The o T to the credit dsk ar the
reporting date is primardly from trade receivables and unbilled cevenue, Accordingly, eredit sk from trade receivabies has been separately evaluated from all
other financial assets in the following paragraphs.

Trade Receivables & Unbilled Revenue
The company has ourstanding trade receivables amounting o Rs. 676.63 lakhs and Rs. 1,372.37 lakhs as of Masch 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 and unbilled
revenue amounting Rs. 390,18 lakhs and Rs. 369.73 lakhs for respectively. Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are typically secured and are dedved from

revenue earned from customers.

On account of adoption of Ind-AS 109, the company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain.

Credit risk exposure
An analysis of age of trade receivables and unbilled receivables ar each reporting date is summasized as follows:
INR in lakhs)
& darch 31,2018
Mot past due 81.91 - 4777 -
Past due less than three months 31745 - 456,96
Past due more than three months but not more than six months 110.02 24564
Past due more than six months but not more than one year 85.02 13212
More than one year 8213 - 189.88
Total 676.63 - 137237 =

Teade recewvables are impaired when recoverability i considered doubtful based on the rec
recervables. The company considers that all the above financial assers that ace not

credir quality.

overy analysis performed by the company for individual rrade

The company does not hold any collateral or other enhancements to cover its eredit risks associated with its financial assers,

Orther financial assets

Credit risk relating o cash and cash equivalents is esnsidered o
with such banks that aze majority owned by the Government of India and
review these banking relationships on an ongoing basis. There are no im
consider all the above financial assets as at the reporting dates to be of good

¢) Liquidity Risk

Our liquidity needs are monitored on the basis of
cash generated from operations & contribution in the form of share capital
We manage our liquidity needs by continuously monitordng cash inflows and b

hly and yearly p

compared to avatlable eash in order to determine any shortfalls.
of sundry creditors, expense payable, employee dues and cetention & depostts arising during the normal

Short teom hquidity requirements consists mainly
course of business as of each reporting date. We m

aintain 3 sufficient balance in cash and cash equivalents to meet our short term

We assess long teem liquidity requirements on a pesiodical basis and manage them theough intemal accruals. In the financial yeas 2018-
taken any loans from any of the sources. Our non-current liabilities include secudty deposits only.

The mble below provides demils regarding the contractual maturities of non-derivative financial labilifies. The table includes both

liquidity requirements,

o

&

-

impaired and past due for each reporting dates under review are of good

eglipble because our counterparties are banks. We consider the eredit quality of term deposin
biect ro the regulatory oversight of the Reserve Bank of India o be gouod, and we
pairment provisions as at cach reporting date against these financial assers. We
credit quality.

The company’s principal sourees of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents,

¥ maintaining adequate cash and eash equivalenrs. Net cash requiremients arc

not

h
flows. |
2 5
March 31, 2019
Finance lease obligation - 1485 34.24 36.08 - 85.17
Secunity Dcpomx 884.79 276.49 107.90 66.22 311.97 1,647.36
Other Financial Liabilites 1,281.18 1,281.18
Total 2,165.97 291.34 [TRT] 102,30 311.97 3,013.71
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statement
March 31, 2018
Security Depos'l:v 311.80 536.48 251.91 97.08 4519 1,242.46
Other Financial Liabilines 669,13 - - - . 669.13
Total 980.93 536.48 251.91 97.08 45.19 1,911.59

27 Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-36 “Impairment of assets”
The company has assessed its fixed assets on periodic intervals for impairment of such assets and during the year and has impaised its Passenger Boarding
Bridge (PBB) on 17,03.2019 for Rs. 63.61 lakhs and balance life of the asset has been reduced to zexo as such asset is unserviceable. That the company has
considered recoverable amount of the asset as Rs 6.31 lakhs.

28 Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS)-108: " Operating Segments”
Bascd on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chicf Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. The Company is in the business of operatons of the Airport
at Chandigach International Airport Limited at Mohali. Consequenty, the Company does not have separate business segment.

(i} Information about major customers
I£ tevenues from transactions with a single external customer amount to 10 per cent or more of an entity’s revenues, the entity shall disclose thar fac, the roral
amount of revenues from each such customer, and the ideatity of the segment or segments reporting the revenues. The same can be provided in the
following format.

No of customers 2 =
Total Revenue from above cus 4,678.39 3.812.67
Total Revenue 10,717.94 9,235.12
% of Toral Revenue 4455 41%

MName of the major customers - Jet Airways (India) Ltd. and Interglobe Aviation Ltd.

(i) Geographical Information

Revenue from external customers by location of operations and information about its non current assets by location of assers are as follow :-

NR in lakhs
India 85,114.21 86,774.86 10,717.94 9,235.12
Toal 85,114.21 86,774.86 10,717.94 9,235.12

(iii) Revenue from Major products and services
Please refer note no. 18 for denils of major product and services
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statement

29 Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard 24 " Related Parties Disclosures”
29.1 Disclosures for Other than Gove. Related Entites

a. Duning the financial year, the Company had entered into relaced party transactions which were on arm's lengrh basis and in the ordinary course of business.
There were no material transactions with any selated pasty as defined under section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,

b. List Related P

Sh. Suneel Dutt Chief Executive Officer v v
Sh. ].B. Saini Chief Financial Officer v
Sh. Rakesh Dembla Chief Financial Officer v

Smt. Avneet Kaur Company Secretary v v
Airports Authonty of India Srakeholder v v
Greater Mohali Area Development Authodty (GMADA) Stakeholder v €
Haryana Urban Development Authonty (HUDA) Stakeholder v v

hurt—
Post-employment benefits 5.99 5.72
Total 80.67 82.91

d. Transactions with Related Parties

Aimports Authority of India ~ ' = 100.47 10.53

Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS) 17 "Leases”

30.1 As lessee
a) Finance Lease (INR in lakhs)
f For the year ended | For the year ended
P -
i March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Lease rent paid during the year 21.54 6.96

(b) Description of lease arrangements :- Arrangement to supply X-Ray Baggage Machine to the company and payment will be made in a tenure of 6 years. The
subject lease is 2 cancellable lease and it include terms such as transfer of ownership to lessee at the end of lease term & also covenng major cconomic life of the
machine. Accordingly, company has classified this lease as finance lease in FY 2018-19 as per the provisions of IND AS 17,
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31 Disclosure in
a) Basic EPS

The eamnings and weighted average number of ordinacy shaces used in the caleulation of basic EPS and diluted EPS is as follows:

Notes forming part of the financial statement

(¢ ) Net carrying value of leased business asset

(INR in lakhs)
2018-19
Particul Gross Carryingvalue |  Accumulated  |Net Carrying value of| Depreciation for
of Assets Depreciation Assets Year
X-Ray Baggage 105.68 832 97.36 6.69
(INR in lakhs)
2017-18
Particular Gross Carrying value | Accumulated  |Net Carrying value of| Depreciation for
of Assets Depreciati Assets Year
X-Ray Baggage 105.68 163 104.05 1.63
Future minimum lease payments under Finance leases
For the year ended March 31, 2019 For the year ended March 31, 2018
Particulars Minimum Lease Plresent Value Minimum Lease Present Value
payments Minimum Lease payments Minimum Lease
payments payments
Not later than 1 year 2L.75 18.61 21.54 19.92
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 vears 8435 60.19 88.51 67.76
Later than 5 years = - 17.28 11.04

Change in classification of lease

CHIAL has chssified this lease as operating lease in FY 2017-18 based on the their previous assessment. In FY 2018-19, it has classified this lease as fnanee lease
as per the provisions of IND AS 17. Consequently, company has recognized the financial lease obligation for the current financial year .. 2018-19 and
corzesponding last financial year. During the year, company has recognized the finance cost of financial lease obligation and deprecianon on the lease asset as an

expense.

30.2 As lessor
a) Operating Lease
* Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

Not later than 1 ym

503

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years Nil
Later than 3 years Nil

of Indi A
P

ing Standard (Ind AS)-33 "Eamings Per Share(EPS)"

Erﬂoss} for the atteibutable to the r:rs of the company

Enmin_gg used in ion of basic carnings per share(A) 1,873 1,406
Weighted averape number of ordinary shares foz the puspose of basic eamings per share(B) 9,604 9,694
Basic EPS(A/B) 0.19 0.15

b) Diluted EPS
The eamings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of Diluted EPS is as follows:

- !'r the y :umbl to the owners the c

IEa.mlngs used in calculation of basic eamings per share(A)

1,573 1,405
Weighted average number of ordinary shases for the purpose of basic eamnings per share(B) 9,694 9,694
|Diluted EPS(A/B) 0.15
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Notes forming part of the financial statement
32 Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets™

(iy Movement in provisions

Opening bal,

Addition/ Transfer during the year

Unlizadon during the year 32729
Closing balance - =

33 Value of Components, spare parts & stores: _ INR in lakhs

Imported ' ' = ]

1) - -
[() Indigenous i 5 6.24 | 6.12
34 Stawtory Auditor Remuneration NR in lakhs
Audir Fees- Smammory Audic 1.00 1.00
[Towl | 1.00 100

35 Contingent Liabilities:

A Power Purchase agreement dated 12.07.2016 was executed berween CHIAL and Renew Solar Power Private Limited for installation of Solac Power Plant of 5
MWp which will be exccuted in two phases. In Phase 1, plant with capacity of 3MWp will be installed and balance 2MWp will be installed on the requiremenr basis
in future, M/s Renew Power will supply 100% of the generated power from 3MWp Solar Power Plant set up by agency to CHIAL “The ranff quoted by the parry
being a lowest bidder was Rs.4.64 per unit. CHIAL is restricted to utilize complete producton of plant due ro non availability of approval of Ni<T MITTERING
from PSPCL but M/s Renew Solar Power Prvate Limited has billed CHIAL to the extent of full capacity of plant which includes amount towards deemed power
generation which is not being unhzed by CHIAL. The amount claimed towards deemed power genention amounting to Rs. 236 crores whereas CHIALL has
acknowledged and paid for in respect of energy actually being consumed and has not recognized the remaining amount iveiced by Rencw Solar Power Pravare
Limited. The party has propmd for setting up Dispute Resolution Committee which is agued by Management and formed a DRC in order to resolve the issue
eaised by agency. The proceeding of DRC 15 under process. Final decision of DRC is yet to be received.

36 Contingent Assets
Mo contingent assets reported a5 on balance sheet date.

37 Capital Commitments
(2) Capital Commitments: Estimated amount of conteacts remaining to be executed on capital account is Rs. 12037.48 lakhs as on March 31, 2019
(b) Capital Commitments: Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account is Rs. 11116 kikhs as on March 31, 2018,

38 Government Grant
During the relevant perod company has recetved a sum of Rs. 281 lakhs as Government Grant under the “Trade Infrastrucrure for Export Scheme (1155 for
“Seetng up of Centre for Perishable Cargo(CPC) at Chandigarh International Airport” which is reflected as current lability as the amount to be unlzed oll
31.03.2020 and noamount has been utilized during the year.

39 Details of Expendirture in foreign currency:-
A. Capiral work in progress
1. Door Frame Metal Detectors (DFMD) (USD 26,004.60) Rs. 18.23 lakhs
2 Supply Installation Testing and Commissioning of 02 Nos. of In Line Baggage Screening Systems (USD 936346.52) Rs. 675.18 lakhs
3 Explosive Trace Detectors(ETDs) (USD 57414.00) Rs.39.91 lakhs.

40 CHIAL has raised invoices to Air India and its subsidiaries in respect of Land Rentals with the rates it is charging from other airlines from Ocr 2015 1o May 2018,
However, Air India was not pl)‘ing this amount and mqumed to dn.tgc similar rates t_hnged by AAIat old Airport at Chmdip.rh_ In F.¥Y. 2018-19, Board of
Diractors/ competent authority has approved for chargeability of same ratez being charged ar old Airport at Chandigarh from Air India and irs subsidiarvs i
respect of land rentls. Accordingly, CHIAL has issued the credit note in respect of the invoices mised in the previous pediod and raised new invoices as per mies
approved by Board. As a result, CHIAL have zecognized the cedit note as reduction in revenue and also recognized the revenue from fresh invoices rarsed to Auc
India.
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statement

41 Disclosure as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 115 - "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"

Iad AS 115 has become effective from 1% Apal 2018 and accordingly the Company has adopted this Ind AS for the ficst time. Ind AS
115 requires entities to exercise judgement, tking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step
of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incrementl costs of obumining a
contract and the costs dicectly relared to fulfilling a contract. In addinon, the standard requires extensive disclosures.

2 The Company adapted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective method of adopton with the date of inital applicanon of 1 April
2018. The Company clected to apply the standard o all conteacts as at 1 Apal 2018. The cumulative effect of ininally applying lnd AS
115 15 recognized ar the date of mital application as an adjustment to the opening balince of retaned eamings. Therefore, the
compasative information was not restated and continues to be reported under Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

3  The mpact of applying Ind A5 115 on the Company's retained earnings as ar 1 Aprl 2018 and dunng the FY 201819 is Nil The
adoption of Ind AS 115 did not have a matedal impact on OCI or the Company’s operating, investing and financing cash flows,

4  Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

a) Description of all the services

(i) Aeronautical Revenue
Aeronautical Revenue includes revenue from all regulared charges levied ar CHIAL ie. Parking Charges, Passenger Service Fee
(Facilimtion), User Development Fee, Fuel Throughpur Chasges and Cargo (X-Bis Screening Chacges) are being recognized ar the mtes
prescrbed by Airport Economic Regulatory Authority (AERA) & CUTE, Extension of Warch Hours and Baggage reconciliaton system
fee are cecognized at the existing rates being charged on similar lines as of AAL Parking charges are recognized, when such services are
provided. Passenger Service Fee (Security) is cecognized as per rate fixed by MoCA. User Develog Fees and P ger Service
fees—Facilitation and Security component are recognized in respect of each embarking passenger at a specified rte.

(ii) Non- Aeronautical Revenue

Non-Aeronautical Revenue means all revenue streams other than Aeronautical Revenue. The same consists of (i) revenue from
concessions (i) rents and land leases; (iii) food and beverage concessions; (iv) utility charges; and (v) other non-aviaton related charges
are recognized based on the terms of contractual agreement.

b) Disaggregation of revenue

1 Company has idendfied their revenue as Aeronautical revenue and Non- Aeronautical Revenue. We have disclosed the demiled
disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers in notes no. 18 " Revenue from opemtons”,

2 All the companies revenue are from domestic market.

3 Company mainly have the revenue recognized over the period of time.

¢) Trade Receivables and Contract Balances
The following table provides the information about receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with customers =

(INR in lakhs)
Pasticulass A - Ason Ason

B e ey T e 4 : ooy ; 31032019 | 31.03.2018
Trade Receivable (Net)- Opening 1,372.37 422.71
Additions 13,100.48) 10,771.01
Deletion 13,796.22] 9,821.36
Closing 676.63 137237
Contract Assets- Opening

- Unbilled Receivables 369.73 6.71
Additions 390.18 369.73
Deletion 369.73 .71
Closing 390.18 360.73

d) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally are on following terms =
(i) 15 days credit pedod in case of Aeronauncal Revenue
(1) 10 days credit period in case of Non- Aeronautical Revenue

€) During the year, management has not received any communication in respect of unsatisfied revenue contract.
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statement

42 Recent accounting pronouncements
Accounting Standards and other amendments and interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective.

A. Ind AS 116 Leases

On Masch 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existng leases Standacd, Ind
AS 17 Leases, and relared Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases for both parties to a contract Le., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a
lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asser is of low value.
Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss. The Smandard also contains enhanced disclosure
requiremnents for lessees. Ind AS 116 substandally casries forward the lessor accountng requirements in Ind AS 17,

Lessees will be also required to re-measure the lease liability upon the occurrence of cectain events (e.g, a change in the lease term, a change in
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recogrise the
amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

The Company will implement Ind AS 116 from 1 April 2019 by applying the modified retrospective approach, meaning that the comparative
figures in the financial statements for the year ending 31st March 2019 will not be restated to show the impact of Ind AS 116.

The anticipated impact of the standard on the company is not yet known though is not expected to be mareral on the income smtement or ner
assets though assets and liabilities will be grossed up for the net present value of the outstanding operating lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019.

43 Miscellaneous Expenses do not include items of expenses exceeding 1% of the total revenue of the company or Rupees Ten lakhs which ever
15 higher.

44 Figures in Financial Statements have been eounded off to the neasest lakhs (except number of shares) and previous years figures have been re-
grouped, re-arranged wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of the current year's figures.

45 Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on 05.07.2019.

For Rajiv Goel & Associates

Chartered Accountag=====,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

weotfauw @;-w;/
{AE:: s (Rakesh Dembla)

(CA Rajiv Goel) “Murthy)
Partner Company Secretary CFO Chairman
M No. 089669

FRN 011106N

Place : Chandigach

Date: 05 -p2-2019
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INDIAN AUDIT & ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT,

OFFICE OF THE PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR OF COMMERCIAL
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CHANDIGARH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

The preparation of financial statements of Chandigarh International Airport
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act. 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the
management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under section 139(5) of the Act is responsibie for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance
with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to
have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report dated 22 August 2019 which
supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 05 August 2019.

I. on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Chandigarh International Airport
Limited for the vear ended 31 March 2019 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access 1o the working papers
of the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and
company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

In view of the revision made in the statutory auditor’s report. to give effect to some of
my audit observations raised during supplementary audit. [ have no further comments to offer

upon or supplement to the statutory auditors™ report under section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

ki
M 9 [xrx

Place: New Delhi (Prachi Pandey)
Dated: 9 September 2019 Principal Director of Commercial Audit
& Ex-officio Member, Audit Board-I,
New Delhi.
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CHANDIGARH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
Corrigendum to Financial statements for the year ended 31* March 2019
DATE: 30" November 2019
TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN

With reference to the financial statements of Chandigarh International Airport Limited (CHIAL) for the
year ended 31% March 2019, it has come to the attention of the management that inadvertently certain
typographical errors were made in footnote to Note no. 17 titled “Other Current Liabilities” wherein the
breakup of duties and taxes were stated as under:

“Duties & Taxes includes statutory liabilities of Rs 27.68 lakhs on account of TDS and Rs.
87.44 lakhs on account of GST”

However, the correct breakup of Duties & Taxes was only Rs. 27.68 lakhs on account of TDS and Rs.
61.44 lakhs on account of GST. Therefore, the amended note should be read as under:

“Duties & Taxes includes statutory liabilities of Rs 27.68 lakhs on account of TDS and Rs.
61.44 lakhs on account of GST”

The inconvenience caused to the readers due to such error is regretted and it is reassured that the same
was not intentional. Efforts shall be made by the management to publicize the same at all forums to
ensure harmonious reading of the financial statements and fair presentation.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of Chandigarh International Airport Limited

W e

CFO
We have verified the above facts.
For Rajiv Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants (FRN 011106N)
W X |8
% P -\{{:I'.
CA Rajiv Goel i
Partner
MS No. 089669
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